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CHAIR HOKAMA: .. .(gavel). .. Council's Committee on Budget and Finance will come to
order. At this time, the Chair recognizes Members Kane, Arakawa, Carroll, Kawano,
Johnson, Molina, Nishiki, and Tavares present. Members, good morning.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Good morning.

BF·53:

AMENDMENT TO THE FISCAL YEAR 2001 BUDGET RELATING TO THE
DEPARTMENT OF
FIRE
CONTROL
(STATE
DEPARTMENT
OF
TRANSPORTATION, STATE AND COMMUNITY HIGHWAY SAFETY PROGRAM $18,975) (C.C. No. 01-29)

May I please direct you to Item 53, amendment to the Fiscal Year 2001 Budget relating
to the Department of Fire Control. Before us we have two items, a proposed resolution
as well as a bill regarding the authorization and acceptance of a grant from the State
Department of Transportation. Here this morning we have Fire Chief Ishikawa, and at
this time I'm going to ask the Chief if he would please give us ... your comments.
MR. ISHIKAWA: Good morning, Mr. Chair. Good morning, Council members.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good morning.
MR. ISHIKAWA: This is the ... a grant that we applied for. This is the second year that we
applied. Actually, we applied for three grants. We were awarded only one. This grant
is awarded for emergency services from the Department of Transportation, State
Highway Safety Program. Last year we, we had a grant awarded to us. We spent the
grant on emergency medical equipment, such as a Jaws, Jaws of Life, spine boards,
cervical collars. This year we were awarded again ... a little lesser amount, but our
intention is to purchase a Jaws of Life and medical supplies, such as replacement spine
boards, cervical collars that we use at all vehicle accidents.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Are you done, Chief?
MR. ISHIKAWA: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Any other comments from the Administration? Michele,
Budget Director... no comments? Thank you. Members, any questions or comments
for mis ... , for anyone from Administration? Mr. Kawano.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Good morning, Chairman.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Chief, what, what other two grant did you apply and didn't
make it? Can you share that with us?
MR. ISHIKAWA: Sure. We applied for a driver trainer position that we were informed that we
could apply for but were denied, and the other one was for another thermo imager
camera.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Oh. Thank you. Thank you, Chief.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Anyone else? Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yeah. Chief, you know, the items that you're saying that
you're going to be purchasing with this, the Jaws of Life, the ... possibly a thermo
imaging camera you'd like to have, are those kinds of equipment you consider to be
essential in your job or very helpful in your job?
MR. ISHIKAWA: Yes. In, in ... with ... to stay within this grant we need to purchase
emergency medical services that we would use on the highways that would be involved
with highways. The Jaws of Life is one of the most important extrication tool that we
have. We have one tool on each engine and what we're doing is we're going to
purchase this second, this Jaws of Life and what it'll be is that'll be our back-up because
presently we don't have any back-up and we're going to utilize this to set up a
maintenance with the Jaws of Life on the line. As we pull it off and maintain, we can
rotate with these jaws. We have some Jaws of Life that are 20 years old. So we need
to maintain that and also maybe if we have to, we'll put this new one on line and pull
another one back as a back-up. Also, it's not thermo imager camera that we are
purchasing with this. Yeah. We don't have enough money because a thermo imager
would cost around $20,000.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: And do you consider that essential equipment?
MR. ISHIKAWA: It is, it is ... essential tool that we need. We have. we purchased one .. .last
year and what it is it's, it can be used in rescue, it can use ... be in structural fires to
locate any person in the structure, it can be use on the highways if we feel someone
was thrown out of the vehicle or anything. It can speed up the process of finding it in
the bushes or wherever the person may be. So it can speed up the process of our
rescue.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay. and the reason I'm asking these questions is because
I want to make sure that these types or pieces of equipment you budget for on a regular
basis, you know, those things that are important and you need to have a maintenance
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system. And I'm glad, you know, you're using this, this funding to try and create a, a
replacement so that you have, you can take stuff off the line and maintain them. But
this is something that the Department needs to do on a regular basis and I think as part
of the, the normal budget if at all possible you need to make sure that it's there, you get
an additional funding like this, a grant, that's an addition that'll help you out even more.
I'm very glad that you're applying for the grants. But I want to make sure that the
firemen have the best protection. I mean there are the, the safety regulations we need
to maintain and we cannot have a situation whereby we don't have a good maintenance
program and if something fails in the field. So, you know, I'm just trying to make sure
that in the budgeting process you do take into account all of these things as that, that
you consider essential for the health, safety, and welfare of this community and your
employees ... as part of the budget, the normal budgeting item. And if we can get
grants like this over and above, you know, that's more power to you.
MR. ISHIKAWA: Yes. Our main concern is our firefighter safety. You know, we need to
protect our rescue people, our firefighters in order to .. .for them to do their job, and that
is our number one priority. So as far as safety equipment, we do go after a lot of the
safety tools for the people. That is our number one concern.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: And in the ... this, this grant you're getting, I guess, is very
specific. The other things, you know, like your entry equipment, your Scotty® air packs,
things like that. When you're working with this, you cannot use this, these fundings for
that kind of thing?
MR. ISHIKAWA: No, it's specific to emergency medical services for highways. This grant
covers only... anything to deal with the highways and what we participate in.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Are there other pieces of equipment that if you had, had a
little bit more funding for, you would prefer to have what you would consider very good
tools to have to expedite the work that you need to do?
MR. ISHIKAWA: Yes. We, we've been requesting through our budget about the safety
equipment we, we need.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay. When we have the budget discussions, then we'll get
into a lot of that. But for now, understanding the scope of what we're talking about, I
can be very supportive of accepting this funding, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Arakawa. Mr. Kane, do you have-COUNCILMEMBER KANE: It's been answered. Thank you.

- 4-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
February 13, 2001

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much. Any other questions or comments from the
Members? Seeing none, it is the Chair's recommendation to adopt the proposed
resolution and have passage of first reading of the proposed ordinance, ordered to print,
and the filing of communication.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Second.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Second.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. I have a motion by Mr. Kane, seconded by Mr. Kawano that
the Committee recommend to Council adoption of the attached resolution,
recommendation of passage of first reading of the proposed bill, and filing of County
Communication 01-29. Discussion, Members? Seeing none, all in favor say aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed say no. Motion is carried.
VOTE:

AYES:

Council members Arakawa, Carroll, Johnson, Kane,
Kawano, Molina, Nishiki, Tavares, and Chair Hokama.

NOES:

None.

MOTION CARRIED
ACTION:

ADOPTION of proposed resolution, FIRST READING of proposed bill,
and FILING of communication.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much for joining us this morning, Chief.
MR. ISHIKAWA: Thank you.
BF·54:

PROPOSED AMENDMENT RELATING TO THE ISSUANCE OF GENERAL
OBLIGATION BONDS (COUNTYWIDE SERVICE CENTER - $700,000)
(c.c. No. 01-30)

CHAIR HOKAMA: Members, if there's no objections, the Chair will have Item 54 at the end of
the calendar since we are still in the process of duplicating information requested. Any
objections?
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COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much.
ACTION:

BF-62:

DEFER Item 54 until the end of the calendar.

AMENDMENT TO THE FISCAL YEAR 2001 BUDGET AS IT PERTAINS
TO THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS AND WASTE
MANAGEMENT FOR THE HIGHWAY AND WASTEWATER FUNDS
($425,000 - Highway Fund and $1,100,000 - Wastewater Fund) (C.C. No. 01-58)

Members, at this time may I please direct you to Item 62 which is an amendment to the
Fiscal Year 2001 Budget as it pertains to the Department of Public Works and Waste
Management for the Highway and Wastewater Funds. From the Highway Fund we're
considering $425,000 and from the Wastewater Funds, $1.1 million. At this time, I
would ask Mr. Lo, Director of Finance if he would--who's going to speak for
Administration at this time? Mr. Lo or Michele?
MR. LO: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Lo.
MR. LO: If you can give me a second to gather my...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. LO: ... some of my notes here.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That, that would be fine.
MR. LO: The request we have here today primarily relates to the recognition of some
carryover/savings in the Highway and Wastewater Funds to cover some of our energy
cost. We've been doing a study of our energy costs and as you know, our electricity
cost are very much tied to fuel and gasoline cost. We have, we have been in discussion
with Maui Electric Company and our. ..what they, what they refer to as our energy cost
adjustment for fuel and purchase energy cost has gone up dramatically. To illustrate
this, the energy cost adjustment factor during the period of July 1999 through December
1999 ranged from a low of .3 cents per kilowatt hours to 1.9 cents per kilowatt hours. In
contrast, from July 2000 to December 2000 this ranged from 2.3 cents per kilowatt hour
to just under 5 cents per kilowatt hour in December. As a result we are pushing through
our budget pretty dramatically in the ... our electricity side. . .. Yeah. As an example,
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our cost--is this through November?--through, through November was 200 ... I'm sorry,
this is for November, it was 294,000, December was 276,000 and January is $411,000.
We also asked Maui Electric to see if our increases related to increased usage or due to
the energy cost, and they related that it was primarily due to, again, the energy cost
adjustment factor. We have increased our electricity usage slightly by approximately
1 percent. Urn ... if, if you ... the, the ... the monies we'll be recognizing is because we
have received our Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and we had excess
carryover above budgeted amounts in both the Wastewater and Highway Funds .
. . .Let's see now. So again, we are looking to recognize those amounts of money.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Lo. One second please, Ms. Tavares. Anything
else from Administration? Ms. Yoshimura. None at this time? Fine. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes. Thank you, Mr. Chair. Mr. Lo, could you tell us the
recognized savings come from your CAFR. Do you have the reference page as where
it is? This CAFR is still not easy to read.
MR. LO: Yeah ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: (Laughter).
MR. LO: Yeah. Council, Council member Tavares, I, I gotta apologize. I, I was actually
prepared, a little bit more prepared for... (chuckle) ... the other item. So I'm (chuckle) a,
a little bit. .. behind here. I think if you can turn to ... Iet's see ...
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Where are you getting the information?
MR. LO: ... page 93 in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. I think if...
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Is this the report?
MR. LO: Yes, I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Ninety-three?
MR. LO: Was that the single audit or. .. I'm sorry, you may have the Single Audit Report. It's
actually a thicker... 1 can't. ..
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: If we don't have it, Mr. Chairman-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: --can it be provided?

- 7-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

February 13, 2001

CHAIR HOKAMA: Short recess .... (gave/) . ..
RECESS:

9:12 a.m.

RECONVENE:

9:15 a.m .

. . . (gave/). .. The Budget and Finance Committee will reconvene. Members, if you're

prepared on the CAFR, we do have, Wes, on page 93 ... Mr. Lo or Ms. Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, he's going to answer.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Lo, please respond.
MR. LO: Mr. Chair, Council member Tavares, just for reference if you can look at page 93
down on the bottom of the page under Fund Balances, the carryover/savings for this
budget year is, is described as the unreserved balances per fund. So if, if you can
The Highway Fund would have an unreserved balance of
follow me across.
$2,553,011, Sewer 3,339,103 and so on and so forth across. Also, I believe in your
binders towards the end there is a... 1 think it's the ... apparently the ... under Item No.
62, there is a copy provided of the actual Budget Ordinance which shows the budgeted
carryover. I'm sorry, I don't have a comparison for you, but. .. you can compare the
actually carryover on the ... CAFR to the budgeted carryover. So there's a difference,
which is the unbudgeted carryover that we're recognizing a portion of at this point in
time.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: So what is the exact amount-CHAIR HOKAMA: Hold on, Mr. Arakawa. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. So you're recognizing for... okay, we're talking about
Wastewater Fund right now, right-MR. LO: Yes. I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --3.3 million. But you're only recognizing a portion of that
saving?
MR. LO: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:
unreserved?

So the balance of that savings then will carryover as
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MR. LO: It'll carryover into, yes, unreserved-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: The next unreserved.
MR. LO: --and will be budgeted as part of the upcoming 2002 Budget year.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Nishiki, you're next-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --and then Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:
Wesley, you mentioned that it's approximately
1 percent. . .increase. Is that electricity uses when you, when you describe that
1 percent and what does 1 percent. .. represent in regards to dollars?
MR. LO: Mr. Chair, Councilman Nishiki-CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Lo.
MR. LO: --I apologize if I caused some confusion there.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Go ahead.
MR. LO: The 1 percent I referred to was the actual increase in usage-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right.
MR. LO: --and not the actual increase in our cost. So ... and, and this was just a number
provided to us by Maui Ele ... , Electric who did an analysis of that. Our actual. .. 1'11
read, read a portion of this to you. It says our actual increase in cost from the period
July 1st, 2000 through December 1st, 2000 increased by about 425,000 to 450,000 over
the same sixth-month period a year earlier. Our calculations indicate that as much as
380,000 was due to the energy cost adjustment factor. I'm not sure if that answers your
question.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay, okay. Okay, in other words ... the oil cost have gone up,
therefore, that they're, they're charging it to Maui County.
MR. LO: Correct--

- 9-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

February 13, 2001

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Now, now in the budget, Wesley, when you calculated this, did
you know that there would be such a sharp increase in cost, number one ... so that you
would have had it budgeted? Number two, what was that increase in electricity that the
County incurred the usage in, what area?
MR. LO: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Lo.
MR. LO: Councilmember Nishiki. .. as far as the, the first question, obviously we didn't
anticipate the extent of the increases in fuel costs. Also, in our attempts to retain as
much of a flat budget as possible in a lot of the areas where we budget for electricity,
we do try to you ... you know, utilize as much savings within our programs as, as
possible. Urn ...
Note:

Short pause.

. . .There was ... I'm sorry... a. .. So anyways, that, that's the answer to the first
question, you know, we really didn't anticipate that much of an increase in their fuel
cost. I think most of you know as consumers that over the last, probably since October,
November, there's been quite a fast increase in, in just even gas prices across the, the
County.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So, so now that we, we seen this increase ... in the cost, you're
now moving some monies out that you've located which you say is carryover/savings,
425,000?
MR. LO: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: What was that money going to be used for or where, where did
it come from? Are we ... because we've not spent it, are we looking at road repair or, or
anything that we've now decided to be austere in?
MR. LO: Mr. Chair, Councilmember Nishiki. Actually, yeah, I guess this, this sort of rolls back
to the discussion on carryover/savings. This money cannot be spent without Council
approval and it is unappropriated. As, as we ... as at least for some of the Council
members from the last term, you know, we do look to have a little bit of
unappropriated ... we're hoping to always have a little bit of unappropriated
carryover/savings to antiCipate any events such as this-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right.
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MR. LO: --sort of a contingency fund, if you will. These amounts now as we move forward into
the next budget, you know, we will be rolling them ... you know, we have not finalized
our budget, but yes they will be rolled over into items such as ...well, first to make sure
that operations are adequately covered. However, since both the Highway and the
Wastewater Funds are pretty much at enterprise status, if you will, which ... where they
cover their own things, we do anticipate rolling in a lot of our cash, excess savings into
things such as cash CIP, so on and so forth. We do want to maintain some level
of... contingency also, though. You know, again ... we couldn't have anticipated this
increase in fuel cost.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Let me, let me ask you this because we've never asked this
question or any, I've never asked it. Do we get any special rates from Maui Electric in
regards to our electricity, and can you give us an idea on what the total County
electricity cost is? And ... you know, just break it down. I think it would be maybe
County and ... Water? I'm not sure.
MR. LO: (Inaudible)-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: But what is our total electric bill?
MR. LO: Hang on one second. Mr. Chair. I think.. .to the best of my knowledge, we do not
receive a special rate from Maui Electric. What we do receive from Maui Electric is the
Franchise Tax. So, you know, we are actually receiving some income from them and
they are charging us ... you know, normal rates. I do have our electricity cost. .. I'm
sorry, at this point I have a breakdown ... by the General Fund and the various funds of
our. .. What I had is my fiscal analyst do a study on gasoline, diesel, and oil cost and
electricity cost--the two of them combined. And so this is not purely-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Electricity.
MR. LO: --electricity. But for the General Fund for the six months ended 12/31/2000 . .. we
had expended 1.5 million and we had encumbrances of $1 million. I think I may have
some annual figures from last year, if you can hold on one second.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: In the ballpark, what is the annual electricity?
MR. LO: Yeah. I'm, I'm sorry. If I may just state that for the year ended 6/30/2000, we
expended $2.8 million on electricity and gasoline, oil, and diesel for the General Fund
and we had 735,000 encumbered. As we move on to the funds, I think the, the, the
majority of the funds .. .for example Wastewater Fund, it expended $2.9 million;
Highway Fund, it expended $1.3 million for the year ended 6/30/2000.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay, I'm done.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Nishiki. Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yeah. I got a couple numbers that you've been throwing out
there that I don't quite understand. First of all, you said that the cost increased for the
cost of fuel, it was about $386,000? Is that correct? $425,000 was the total cost of
which you said 386,000 was the cost of the increase in the price of diesel.
MR. LO: Mr. Chair, Councilmember Arakawa. Again, I apologize if I. .. misstated this, but that
was the actual increase in the amount spent from Maui Electric, not the actual cost. It
was what they refer to as the increase over the sixth-month period in cost. So it's
actually not the total amount of the cost, but just the increase.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: So this is over and above what already was there?
MR. LO: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay, so it's increased cost? The, the-MR. LO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: --the extra. So that extra that we're talking about, the reason
that you have to come in for this amendment, the $425,000. Of that $425,000 you
credited 326,000, that's the increase in the, the cost of fuel to Maui Electric, and you
said there was a 1 percent increase in usage. Is that correct?
MR. LO: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: If I take the $386,000 from the 425, that leaves me
approximately $39,000. One (1) percent usage in the system ... if I take 39 and I
multiply that by 100, that's only... what? That, that. .. it doesn't-COUNCILMEMBER KANE: (Inaudible).
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: 3.9 million? So you're coming up with a 2.8 figure. The
numbers don't quite match.
MR. LO: Councilmember Arakawa, I, I. .. I'd have to take a look at the numbers again. This
was for a sixth-month period, number one. This was overall, again, what Maui Electric
pulled for all funds. So I, I think to be ... to, to really do a proper analysis of that, you'd
probably have to sort of make sure we're comparing apples and oranges, and again I, I
think there's a lot of information. So I would be hardpressed to give you an exact
answer of the calculations.
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COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Well, I'm, I'm trying to calculate it out with what you're, what
you're saying and that's why it's not coming out.
MR. LO: (Inaudible due to interruption)-COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Can you give me, can you tell me, explain to me exactly
what you're saying so that I can try and work this thing out. .. 'cause it doesn't make
sense to me right now.
MR. LO: Um-COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: What. .. the $425,000 difference that, that you're looking at.
MR. LO: I'm sorry. Could you restate the question, Mr. Arakawa?
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay. You said that there was a 1 percent increase in
usage, okay, of the, of the .. .from the total budget that you, you plaid [sic], paid last
year. So there's a 1 percent increase to that because we've put on more equipment.
What does that eq ... , equate to where we've used more electricity than last year, more
kilowatt hours or-MR. LO: Yeah. It just, it just basically states that per their analysis that we have just increased
usage of electricity by approximately 1 % percent over the prior year.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: 1 % percent?
MR. LO: Right, 1 to % percent.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: 1 or % percent.
MR. LO: It says 1 % percent.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay. So if we're doing, increasing 1 % percent because of
uses--I'm, I'm trying to calculate this out because I'm trying to see why we're having this
extra cost and it doesn't seem to be coming from the fuel increase, the price of
increase, but yet you're using that as your basis.
MR. LO: Um-COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: The cost per fuel, per kilowatt hour... usage.

- 13-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

February 13, 2001

MR. LO: Councilman Arakawa, I, I hope I'm understanding this correctly and I apologize if I'm
not. There, there is two things that can cause the increase--and, again, I apologize if
I'm not answering the question properly--but there's two things that can affect or
increase in electricity cost. One obviously is usage and the other is something called
the energy cost adjustment-COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Right.
MR. LO: --which is based on a ... as I understand it, they take their fuel cost during a period
and they will retroactively in arrears charge that back to the consumer. And so it really
is, is based on, again, worldwide fuel cost I guess or, or Maui Electric's fuel cost.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay.
MR. LO: So according to Maui Electric, the total increase in usage over the sixth-month
period, again which I, I don't. .. you know, this is just a letter that they provided to us,
was about 425,000 to $450,000 over the prior sixth-month period. They did do an
analysis on our usage also. On the usage portion of it they're saying that actually--I'm
sorry, let me restate that. Of that 425 to $450,000 increase in cost, they attribute to
approximately 380,000 of that 425 to $450,000 increase to the energy cost adjustment.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay.
MR. LO: I, I'm sorry, I hope that clarifies-COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: I understand that, but you also said there's a 1 % percent
increase in consumption of electricity.
MR. LO: Correct. I mean according to their analysis, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: So the, the difference, the balance ... I'm taking, $386,000
from 425, which was the total amount, it comes out to roughly 39,000.
MR. LO: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Right, that's 1 percent-MR. LO: Okay. Again, I'm just state-COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: and 1 % percent would be ... well, that's 1 % percent, 3.9.
MR. LO: Point well taken. I, I, I. .. 1 understand your, your logic there. I'm just basically stating
what Maui Electric has quoted to us in this letter just explaining the difference in there.
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COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: All I'm saying is that the numbers that you're giving us
don't. .. you're giving us in my mind doesn't correlate-MR. LO: Okay. I, I can appreciate that. Point well taken. Again, we were just basically
reciting what Maui Electric has provided to us.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Well, as the Department, I think we need to get accurate
information when we're making decisions. That's the point I'm making on this whole
thing. You can't just throw numbers out there and expect us to accept those numbers
as being accurate when they're ... in actuality if you break 'em apart and understand
'em, they're not accurate. So when you make presentations, I would appreciate that if
you're going to be making a presentation and you're going to say that something is at a
value, that you actually have that. .. to be able to back it up. 'Cause when I do the
rough calculations, what I'm getting in my mind and what you're saying, it doesn't work
out. Now I can understand that there's a shortage because the electric bill went higher.
That, that's perfectly easy to understand. I can see where we need to make an
adjustment. I'm trying to understand the numbers your throwing out and why you're
throwing out those numbers, and in light of what you're telling us, it just doesn't make
any sense. " .Or am I mistaken on that?
MR. LO: Mr., Mr. Arakawa, Councilman Arakawa, Mr. Chair, I apologize if these numbers are
not correct; however, I would like to state for the record that it would be unfair for me to
dispute Maui Electric's figures as their calculations probably a lot more depth into it
than, you know ... again, we are not an electric company. So I apologize. I, I. .. your
point is well taken and in the future we will take a look at these numbers a little more
closer. I do, I simply wanted to state for the record what Maui Electric had indicated
regarding the electricity cost, and that was the point of my statement. So I do
apologize.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: In trying to calculate out what you're going to use for the
year and in your formula for calculating out what your expenses are going to be, do you
or do you not calculate in a adjustment. .. when you put in your budget? 'Cause if
you're coming for this adjustment right now, it means that you haven't calculated the
adjustment necessary into your budget. So do you or do you not calculate that in?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Lo.
MR. LO: Mr. Chair, Councilmember Arakawa. By and large the, the programs and the Budget
Office do factor in potential adjustments into the electricity and fuel cost, particularly
over the last several years since we have been trying our best to maintain a flat bud ... ,
budget; however, the increasing cost, you know, we, we do ... it starts hitting up against
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the ceiling a little bit more. However, we did not anticipate this mar ... , margin of
that. .. this margin of increase.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Then what were you anticipating? What did you calculate
into the budget? What percentage increase?
MR. LO: We, we had ... 1, I understand we had been budgeting 8 percent increase.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: You, you had been budgeting an 8 percent increase and this
$425,000 comes out an 8 percent increase? That doesn't make sense either. The four,
the 8 percent increase on the budget on your... what your total, your total budget for
electricity usage. Now you came out with ... 2.8 million, $2.9 million amount for, for half
a year, right?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, Councilmember Arakawa. When we did our 2001 Budget, we
estimated an 8 percent increase in electrical costs.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Over what number?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Over what was budgeted for in Fiscal Year 2000.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: What, what was the number in 2000?
MS. YOSHIMURA: I'm sorry, I don't have that information.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: We", what's 2001? Just take 8 percent away from that.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Okay. For the Highway Fund the budget amount was 1 mi"ion-COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: You're talking Sewer Fund, right?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Oh... For the Wastewater Fund, the budgeted amount for electricity is
$2,727,650.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: And that was this year?
MS. YOSHIMURA: That was for Fiscal Year 2001.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: So I would assume that 2000 was 8 percent less than this?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: So in, in anticipation for what your request is, the actual
consumption of dollars to pay for your electricity is not, is 8 percent plus this ... is what
the adjustment has to be. You budgeted 8 percent for a raise in cost plus the additional
425,000 that your coming in. So the actual adjustment is, what, about 12 percent? I
don't know. I didn't, I don't have all the exact numbers. Is that what we're actually
dealing with?
... What, what is the actual increase-CHAIR HOKAMA: You want a recess? Okay. Mr., Mr. Arakawa, since we have Mr. Goode
that can, maybe help break it down since we, we're looking at a lump sum for the
Department area, I'm going to ask for a short recess and so they can get a answer for
you. Short recess .... (gavel) . ..
RECESS:

9:37 a.m.

RECONVENE:

9:41 a.m .

. . . (gavel). .. The Budget and Finance Committee will reconvene. At this time, the
Chair is going to ...just say that I think Mr. Arakawa brings up some very good points
that I believe the Department must prepare once we get to the budget deliberation
process. But at this time, what the Chair wants to know is exactly what is being
requested of this Committee to pay our bills so that the services of this County
continues, and that's what we want to know and that's we, we ... you're going to ask us
for approval for. So let's get on with it.

MR. GOODE: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Goode, Director of Public Works.
MR. GOODE: Thank you. Since I initiated the request to the Budget Office, I'd like to just
explain from the Department level what's going on. Real quick is that, you know, our
electrical situation--and I'm talking about Wastewater now, it's a very parallel situation
for Highways. For Wastewater... it really started about two years ago. Two years ago,
you may recall gas or oil was $10 a barrel. It's like $30 a barrel now. And as Wes
described, those costes [sic], costs, you know, eventually come back and it's
usually... Iags behind. Essentially at the end of last year if you look at our wastewater
reclamation facilities, they had $20 left in the budget. Couldn't buy plate lunches for
everybody. Okay. They ... it went down to the bare bones, and one of the ways they
made it is they didn't pay their electric bill till the next, till July 1, okay, because these,
these fuel charges, surcharges kept adding up during the year and we scraped and
scrimped to make it work. And so this year, we're at a point where we're going to turn
electricity off in the wastewater plants in March, and right now we have a balance of
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$515,000 for electric, okay, for our five plants. We've been averaging the last three
months, $327,000 a month. Okay. That, this is the reality. So one thing I've asked
them do, of course, to make sure they're using their electricity wisely, and it turns out,
you know, our, our kilowatt hour or kilowatts used per, you know, say 1,000 gallons
processed has actually gone down. So in terms of, you know, the flows that are
increasing every year, we're doing a good job at. .. as far as that goes. We just can
control, you know, what the fuel surcharge is. So essentially that's what we have. We
have a balance of 515,000. We're average 327 the last three months. So we've got
about a month and a half of electricity left of Wastewater. The situation in Highways,
the numbers are different in terms of what her budget is and how much we're asking for,
but the situation is the same. Okay. Thank you very much, Mr., Goode. I think that
helps bring it back to perspective members. Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: And that's when I asked the Finance Department did you
budget for increase, what are you budgeting for increases and costs? Okay. If we were
to the point last year where we couldn't make the budget and you were down there,
your last $20, it's obvious to me that we didn't budget enough into the department
because we were causing a situation that we're actually delaying paying our bills and
there wasn't enough money in the budget to pay the bills. That, that's essentially what I
heard you say, and as keepers of this County we have to make sure that we don't
jeopardize the County and the people, the people that live here because we don't
budget properly. If it's going to cost more, then we need to have accurate amounts and
we need to know what the dollars are. If we're so far underbudget that you can't pay
the bills, there's a problem. In how we're going to analyze and how we're going to be
granting this, you know, I need to understand what exactly is happening. Thank you,
David, for explaining that. 'Cause it makes a, it makes a big difference the way you're
explaining it, understanding that there is a real serious problem, and I really don't have
a problem in passing this bill. What I need to do in order to do that, however, is to
understand the reasons why, and it's because we have underbudgeted the Department
as far as the electricity and we need to work on that. In trying to take from the
carryover/savings, in trying to take money from the carryover/savings, my question is
are we jeopardizing future operations.
Should the Department. .. because the
Department has the ability to raise fees, to work on a, a separate account for those
fees. And I understand last year, and I could be wrong about this 'cause I wasn't on the
Council, you actually reduced that, the amount that you were collecting because there
was an overage. Is that true or... Iast year or the year before, is that true?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: No. We didn't reduce the sewer fee, fund fee?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, hold on please.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I can help out.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Oh,oh.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I can answer that for Mr. Arakawa. We didn't reduce the
fees. We reduced the contribution from the General Fund to the Wastewater Fund
because they were running a carryover/savings.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay. So by reducing the General Fund we're actually
reducing their amount, the amount that the Department had? But again it, it amounts to
the same things. When we're doing a budget, we have to make sure that the, the
amount that we have in totality for all of your expenditures is adequate for the
Department. So we need to, we need to look at that and ... I'm, I want to know what
percentage about when we reduce this amount, the carryover savings, what is that
impact going to be on this next year's budget, in your opinion? How is that going to
affect your budgeting?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Arakawa, the Chair prefers that we, we do this kind discussion during
the budget process.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: But it per ... , it spec ... , it specifically pertains to what we're
doing here today-CHAIR HOKAMA: The Chair is-COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA:
--'cause we're taking money from the, from the
carryover/savings, we're taking money from that account-CHAIR HOKAMA: I understand where we're taking the money, Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: --and I need to understand, for me I need to understand
what the effect of taking the money from that account does.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Simple, isn't it? We just reduce the amount of carryover/savings.
MR. LO: Mr. Chair, you are correct.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. 'Nough. Mr. Nishiki.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, thank you. And, and, and to speak with more clarity, I
think that. . David Goode and Charlie was trying to make, as Charlie ... Charmaine had
represented, the Department more self-sufficient, therefore, the different programs and
everything else to whereby their budget basically did show, Mr. Chairman, less of a
need for money. I think it is a plus from where I can see anyway that as we come
towards ...the fiscal year's end that--I hope anyway all departments will be showing
this--that we are showing that they did become a little austere to make sure that they
were carryover/savings in each department, thereby perhaps not necessarily needing to
raise property taxes or whatever. But I think we made an important issue to the
different departments and the Administration, please don't go spending your money
despite that we did not make any cuts in that year's budget for the different
departments, and I think this may be a reflection from the fact that this Administration,
but we'll find out, was very austere in the way they spent money. I think electricity, all of
us, we're at the mercy of Maui Electric and it's one area that had propped up. So I don't
think we can do much about this issue.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Nishiki. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Although, you know, there are some
factors we cannot control, such as fuel cost, I think we need to reemphasize to all
County employees and departments about the importance of conserving electricity to
help save our taxpayer dollars. Question to Mr. Lo with regard to the franchise tax.
How much revenue was generated?
Note:

Short pause.

MR. LO: If you can bear with me one second while I pull this out.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Sure. Uh-huh.
Note:

Long pause.

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you for being here, Mr. Lo, also to (inaudible). Quite a
challenge here today.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Lo, are you prepared to be able to answer-MR. LO: I, I'm sorry. I need to look through the CAFR to get that figure for you exactly, but I
can provide that you--
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Sure.
MR. LO: --in writing.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Do you have an, an average though-MR. LO: No, I'm, I'm sorry.
hard pressed--

We've got so many different taxes I would be, I would be

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MR. LO: --to give you an accurate figure.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Molina, would you like to wait for the response or-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Sure. No problem.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --would you care for the ... a written response?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: A written response would be fine.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Lo, the Chair will send you a letter so that you can respond to
the, the Committee's questions in writing as soon as possible. Mr. Molina, are you
done?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes. Thank you, Mr. Chair. You know like Mr. Arakawa, I
have concerns about how the budget is, is prepared and what figures are being used
and the percentage, the anticipate increase in service costs, and supplies and things
like that. But I also agree that that belongs in the budget deliberations as we talk about
each of the departments. I think what's before us today is to pay the bills and we bear
in mind that this did come up so that when, when during the budget discussion,
especially when we talk about electricity, that we have a, a real comprehensive picture
or whatever electricity uses are throughout Maui County, comparing it over the last
couple of years and the projections into 2002 which is what the budget is, we'll be
looking at. I think it's a, a real disadvantage for the, for Administration to try to look for
the answers now because there, it is complex. I mean I can't hardly read this CAFR
report. So, you know, that we need them to interpret them for us and to get the figures
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that we want. But for sure one of the main ones I want to look at is electrical cost,
Countywide broken down by departments and what part of it attributable to usage,
increase, and what part is attributable to fuel adjustment cost increase. And for actually
another reason, because I think that we need to seriously be looking at alternative
energy sources for Maui County government, if not for all of Maui County, and maybe
there are areas we need to be involved in looking at what it costs us. Maybe we have to
hire our own research to be developing fuel cells or whatever because we need to get
cost savings back to the taxpayer if it means that we ... you know, if we're tied into
waiting for the electrical utility to do it, it's costing our taxpayers money as wait. If
there's something we can do to promote that. .. whatever, then we should be looking at
that very seriously 'cause the cost benefit may be such that the taxpayers will come out
way ahead if the Maui County government takes a lead in some of these electrical cost
reducers, for example. And I know Kal is working in that area, so we need to support
him as much as possible. But if you're ready, Mr. Chair, I'm ready to make a motion for
this.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: I still have questions.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Tavares. Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yeah. Mr. Chairman, you know, contrary to the popular
opinion that taking money from the carryover/saving has no effect on the ...
--(CHANGE OF TAPE)-- ... actually does have quite a bit of effect on the following year
budget because ... what the department is budgeting for right now, the ability to have
that extra amount as a padding in adding on to what they're actually bringing into the
department will depend, will be dependent on the total amount of budget that they
actually have. So if you reduce this year's budget by 500 and ... or 425,000, that means
next year they have 425,000 less to work with, and so to just say fla ... , blatantly, you
know, oh it doesn't make anything, any difference, that's not accurate. The reason that
I'm asking this-CHAIR HOKAMA: And that's why, Mr. Arakawa, I, I. .. we all agree (chuckle) with you. We,
we're going to need to discuss this when we do-COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Right. But, yeah, but-CHAIR HOKAMA: --the budget process deliberations.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA:
amount.

--your comment was, yeah ... all it does is reduce the

CHAIR HOKAMA: It does reduce the amount.
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COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: It does reduce the amount, but there are other, other factors
to be considered.
CHAI R HOKAMA: And we will discuss it-COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: And that-CHAIR HOKAMA: --thoroughly at the appropriate time, Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: But-CHAIR HOKAMA: The Chair rules that this is not the appropriate time.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: What is, what is, what-CHAIR HOKAMA: You want to challenge the ruling of the Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: What is my question? You haven't let me finish asking the
question.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Then state your questions-COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: All I'm doing is making a comment on why-CHAIR HOKAMA: --stick to the subject matter of the request before us.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: I am asking.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You're straying into general grounds, Mr. Arakawa, and that's the Chair
opinion and ruling.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: In looking at. .. what you're doing with this year's budget, in
calculating out the amount that was short, can you, can you explain to me what did we
add on, what kind of equipment did we add on, what kind of expenses did we add on to
increase the uses by 1 % percent?
Note:

Short pause.

CHAIR HOKAMA: David, are you prepared to answer that. .. Mr. Goode?
MR. GOODE: I, I think so. Just to make sure I got the question right. What, what accounts for
the 1 percent increase in usage?
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COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Well, Wes said 1 Y2 percent's more accurate.
MR. GOODE: According to Maui Electric and, and I do note here as the first time seeing there
little let..., little letter here and it says based on a quick review. So ... 1 to 1 Y2
percent. .. certainly for Wastewater as we have increased flows, increased pumping
costs at our pump stations or to pump ... increase need for electricity at our pumping
stations as well as the plant. And for .. .for Highways we have both traffic signals that
we own and operate and as we ... have more traffic signals, we have higher costs as
well as the street lights themselves. So as we add street lights to our inventory, we
increase our usage.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: So every time we add on, we're adding on the street lights,
we're adding on the traffic control devices ... what-MR. GOODE: No. That's (inaudible due to interruption) what I said.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: --what amount. " Let, let me ask you in a little bit more
general terms. Approximately how many more of these types of equipment did it take to
come up to the 425,000? Did we add on? Is this a whole lot increase in ... what we're,
what we're using the electricity for ... or is it just-MR. GOODE: Well, well, almost all that 425 is just a fuel surcharge. So the ... 1, I'd have to
get back to you like on a... say we could do a cost per light, per year to operate or a
cost per traffic signal system per year to operate.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Better, better yet what I would prefer as something that we
could look at, what the average increase anticipated is going to be ... because of the
way the population is growing or how you project it out. Again, I'm, I'm very worried,
you know. When, when you're telling us that you actually came down to not having to
pay the bills because you didn't have enough money in the account. .. on a, from a
budgeting processing, we need to be looking at that a lot better. And the amount that
we're asking for, you know, the 1.1 million and the 425, that's a lot of money. That's
$1.5 million on electricity that we're adjusting. So proportionate wise it is quite a bit
and ... which is why I think originally Wes, Wes' numbers were not quite accurate
because of the way he was interpreting it. But in any case, we'll have this discussion in
full when we get to budget as to what the details are. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Arakawa. Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Your recommendation, Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR HOKAMA: My recommendation, Members, is to pass the proposed bill on first reading
and filing of County Communication 01-58.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Second.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. I have a motion by Mr. Kane, seconded by Mr. Molina that the
proposed ordinance amending Fiscal Year 2001 Budget for the County of Maui as it
pertains to the Department of Public Works and Waste Management and the Highway
and Wastewater Funds pass first reading and County Communication 01-58 be filed.
Discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yes. One, one last piece of discussion.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: You know when we're getting these things in our binders,
there's very little substance to what's there. So if you actually read what's in here,
there's not enough to really understand what the issues are. I would appreciate if the
Department would put all of the pertinent information into the binders because you really
don't have a lot of it to, to come out with or at least make the appropriate references to
our budget books or whatever books there are ... and we don't have to have all this
discussion on the floor. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Arakawa, your comments are well noted and I would appreciate if the
Coun ... , the Department would try and accommodate the Members' concerns and
requests. Any other discussion? Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. I, I, I. .. 1 think this would make, as Alan said, things
move quickly. I think you'll notice the different personalities in, in, in this Council this
year. So I would ask this Administration to share with us whatever information you have
and that way we can read through--the Maui Electric letter, Whatever, today we asked
for the lease--because ... you're going to encounter more of these kinds of questions.
So in lieu of time saved and everything else, whatever you can share with us would be
appreciated. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your comments, Mr. Nishiki. Further discussion? Seeing
none, all in favor say aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed say no. Motion carried. Members, thank you very much. That
was Item 62.
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VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Arakawa, Carroll, Johnson, Kane,
Kawano, Molina, Nishiki, Tavares, and Chair Hokama.

NOES:

None.

MOTION CARRIED
ACTION:

FIRST READING of proposed bill, and FILING of communication.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Members, the Chair would ask your indulgence again. I would like to bring
back. .. Well, since we have Mr. Goode here, you know what, we'll follow the ... the
agenda and hit Item No. 18, the fourth item of the ... today's proposed agenda.

BF-18:

AMENDMENT TO THE FISCAL YEAR 2001 BUDGET RELATING TO
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE
HANA COMMUNITY PLAN DISTRICT AND PAIA-HAIKU COMMUNITY
PLAN DISTRICT (BRIDGE PROGRAM-$1,222,044 Highway Fund Revenue)
(C.C. No. 00-252)

This is, and again, an amendment to Fiscal Year 2001 Budget relating to capital
improvement project appropriations for the Hana Community Plan District and
Paia-Haiku Community Plan District. .. in particular, the bridge program and the
$1.2 million Highway Fund revenue. Administration.
MR. GOODE: Thank you, Chair. The proposed bill before you. .. Hang on a minute.
Eighteen, yeah. Okay. As, as you may know the, the Department has budget in act...,
actually in Fiscal Year 2000 for rehabilitation and replacement of some of our bridges in
Hana. As a result of the ongoing discussions we've had with the community, the Bridge
Preservation Plan that's currently being circulated and processed, we were unable to
begin work on, on any of these bridges, and these monies were originally appropriated
in July 1, 1999. They're CIP monies so they, they expired at the end of last calendar
year, December 31 S t. 2000. So in September 2000, I wrote this memo ... basically
asking that these get reappropriated into this Fiscal Year. So essentially the monies
lapsed and we'd like to have them back in this fiscal year budget. We feel that we
can ... based on the movement we've made, not only in understanding what the
community needs are, but adjusting our design and ... hopefully winning over State and
Federal approval of a new, a new standard for bridges. And so you'll see that the
monies we're asking to reappropriate to this year include not only Hana district, but
Paia-Haiku for the ... Peahi Bridge. That one ... we had a Public Works Committee
meeting over a year ago and the result of that meeting was to not do anything until we
get some word from the Feds as to what will be accepted for a road, like a one lane or
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smaller standard. We're not quite there yet, we're almost there with the Feds. So we
feel that we can ... ask to, you know, reapp ... , reappropriate that one as well.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much. Anyone else from Administration? If not, it is
open for questions from the Members. Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you. Mr., Mr. Goode, good morning.
MR. GOODE: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Can you explain again why or... if I didn't hear it, the reason why
we appropriated the money in '99 and it lapsed? What, what was ... was it because of
the community input that you were trying to get and the ... if what we got from, the input
from the community and going to the Feds and seeing if that was acceptable? Again, if
you can just bring clarity to the reason why the monies lapsed and now you're asking for
a reappropriation.
MR. GOODE: Okay. The, the main reason, Councilman Kane, that the, the monies lapsed is
that we could not get an SMA permit. Papaahawahawa Bridge, we couldn't get an SMA
permit for where we were at in terms of the bridge design at that time, and we also
committed at that time that we go back to the drawing board and which meant County
funds, not Federal funds. But we wanted to hold on as much money as we could 'cause
it was going to be a lot more expensive from certainly County funds standpoint, and
that's, that's essentially where we are. So that whole kind of retooling of our effort took
time.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. So, so, Mr. Chairman, if I may.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So now you're saying that they're--well, explain to me the SMA
process now. Where, where are you at now with that? Is that something that is
required? Is that an anticipated barrier that you're gonna ... run into? Something that
you didn't anticipate last time around? You're asking for the reappropriation? Are there
any type of anticipations that you foresee that may be problems for you to pro ... , to
proceed with what you folks intend to do?
MR. GOODE: I think at this time based on the, the 16-foot bridge we've got and the input
we've got. .. on that design, we're not at 100 percent in terms of everybody liking it, and
I, I don't think we'll ever be, but we're much higher. So I would say the odds of getting
an SMA permit now are pretty high, and we feel comfortable moving forward and going
through that. I'm sure Councilman Carroll can add a whole lot to this discussion. He
actually made sure that the, you know, Piilani High ... , we call Piilani Highway on that
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side is in the SMA District and so and all bridges--there's always, there's a question.
Are the bridges really in the district or not? He made it clear and we, the Planning
Commission essentially ruled on it yes, they're in the SMA District. So we're gonna get
SMA permits for all 'em.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Kane. Questions from other Members? Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yeah. So, David, basically you're all ready to go on this one,
these three projects?
MR. GOODE: Not quite. We don't have SMA permits yet. We're going through a bridge,
bridge preservation plan for all but two bridges, which we've received what we call
Section 106 approval on.
So we're going to this Historic District. .. Historic
District--historic approval for these remainder bridges. The two that we've essentially
progressing with design, we're continuing with Papaahawahawa and ... 1 think
it's ... Kaholopo.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: ... Basically you have about four months left in this budget
period. So you're asking us to reallocate the funds for this budget period ... and I want
to ask you-MR. GOODE: Well, it goes till the end of the year, it goes through December 31 st.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Till December?
MR. GOODE: So that gives us till December 31 st to encumber a contract.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay.
MR. GOODE: So the contractor may not even start till another six months.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Well, as long as you're comfortable with it, I'm fine with it.
MR. GOODE: I think we can live with it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Arakawa. Anyone else? Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Just that I think this is one case where the County has
worked really well with the community and we're very pleased with how they have
participated and their sensitivity to the East Maui area in particular, and I would hope
that the rest of the Council members would support this. Thank you.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much for your comments. Anyone else? Just one
question, David. I know one of the concerns shared by the Fire Department last term
was the width of the bridge ... and I guess the capacity. That's all been engineered into
your proposals now... and the ability for them to respond to rural areas?
MR. GOODE: That's correct, Councilman Hokama. The ... the bridge that we're looking at are
16-feet wide, that's plenty wide for the fire truck. It, it'll still be considered a one lane
and the weight capacity will be up in the 20-ton rating. So they'll be happy and, and
we'll be happy too when we take our refuse trucks over, our cesspools trucks over, the
Maui Electric trucks.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much, Mr. Goode. Anyone else? If not, the Chair's
recommendation is to pass the proposed bill on first reading and the filing of County
Communication 00-252.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Second.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. I have a motion by Mr. Carroll, seconded by Mr. Kane that the
attached bill amending ... Fiscal Year 2001 Budget relating to capital improvement
projects in the Hana Community District and Paia-Haiku Community Plan District pass
first reading and County Communication 00-252 be filed. Discussion? Seeing none, all
in favor say aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed say no. Motion carried.
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Arakawa, Carroll, Johnson, Kane,
Kawano, Molina, Nishiki, Tavares, and Chair Hokama.

NOES:

None.

MOTION CARRIED
ACTION:

FIRST READING
communication.

of

revised
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BF-23:

AMENDMENT TO THE FISCAL YEAR 2001 BUDGET AS IT RELATES TO
ROAD IMPROVEMENTS IN THE KIHEI-MAKENA COMMUNITY PLAN
DISTRICT (C.C. No. 00-268)

CHAIR HOKAMA: We have two more items for discussion today, Members. . .. Since we
have Mr. Goode, I will be--Iet me direct you to Item 23 please, Members. It's the last
one on the agenda as ... stated , and this is again an amendment to Fiscal Year 2001
Budget as it relates to road improvements in the Kihei-Makena Community Plan District.
This item, Members, has two revised proposed bills that was sent to us, I believe, on
February 8th • Mr. Goode, if you would care to explain your, uh, the proposals please.
MR. GOODE: Thank you, Chair. The proposal is rather straightforward. The existing
ordinance ... as read as the Kihei-Makena Community Plan District, A. Road
Improvements, and then it says "South Kihei Road Phase IV", and these are design
monies and we've already encumbered that. It should have read "Phase VI". So that's
one thing we wanted to change was just that typo. And then the second thing we
wanted to do was the fact that. .. the Mayor has been active in working with the
community as it relates to Phase IV, and also certainly very active in helping this
Department move forward with the North-South Collector Road. So to identify, you
know, those community concerns and to appropriate some monies that we can start
work on designing portions of the North-South Collector Road, we'd like to have the
ordinance be flexible and that it reads simply "South Kihei Road and North-South
Collector Road".
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Goode. Question, Members? Yes, Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yeah. Dave, on Phase IV that's the area in front of Luana
Kai?
MR. GOODE: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: And, and is it my understanding that you're not going to be
doing that expansion-MR. GOODE: Uh-COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: --at the request of the community there?
MR. GOODE: That's, that's not correct. What we've communicated to the community that
we're going to put the project on hold and reevaluate the need for the size of the road,
and that involves redoing major portions of the Kihei Traffic Master Plan. The Master
Plan, of course, is a response through zoning and we're going to look at the numbers
and see whether there's truly a need for a future four lanes or not.
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COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: In moving the fund, taking out the Phase IV, where are you
planning to put the funds? Are you, are the ... these, these funds that we have here
right now, are you going to put them to some other section instead of Phase IV?
MR. GOODE: They were never intended for Phase IV. That was a typo. It should have read
Phase VI. That was our original intent when we ... you know, over a year ago. But at
this point our intention is to put the money on the North-South Collector Road.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: So what you're asking for is to eliminate the South Kihei
Road altogether and just put all that money into the South, North-South Collector?
MR. GOODE: Well, we'd like to just eliminate the words "Phase IV" and just leave it 1. South
Kihei Road, 2. North-South Collector Road, and that gives us some flexibility if we ...
You know, a lot of times when we do a design project, for instance, to ... take a look at
this, you know redo the Traffic Master Plan, okay, (inaudible) where am I going to get
money for that? So I had to look around through the Budget Ordinance to see which,
you know, where I can get flexibility. And it's important to the partment [sic], to the
Department certainly, you know, to minimize trips up to the Budget Committee to be
able to have some flexibility to effectuate our program. So we prefer... you know, even
though I'm going to state again, we intend to use this solely for the North-South
Collector Road. It just gives us some flexibility should something come up.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yeah. 'Cause I, I do know that there was a lot of concern. I
went down to several of those community hearings on Phase IV, and if we're moving
the funding out of that area and which you're saying that's not necessarily true, I would
like to make sure that they, you know, that, that community is heard from loud and clear.
'Cause what I heard now was they didn't want it there. So if we're going to be working
in other areas, that's fine. Let's work in the areas where they, the people really want the
expansion first rather than trying to hit our heads against a stone wall. So if the other
phases are okay, it's fine by me, but I would like to concentrate on the North-South
Collector Road because I think it's critical in the movement of traffic. If I may ask, what
are you working on exactly in the North-South Collector Road? Is it just the widening or
bicycle paths or jogging paths or what, what are you working on?
MR. GOODE: What we're going to have to do first is ... do an environmental assessment for
the whole corridor, and that's going to entail identifying, you know, issues and
opportunities along, along those routes where we have land, where we don't have land,
where we may have to acquire buildings, for instance, and also we'll detail out what the
various sections of the road may look like in terms of bikeways, travel lanes,
landscaping, etc. So I anticipate the bulk of this money is gonna go to that effort.
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COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yeah, because earlier this month I sent a request down to
your Department to look at the Wailea end or the area just before Wailea as far as the
North-South Collector Road. One of those communities there was pretty much ... 1, I
looked at it and it's taken out. So I'd like to see and I'm waiting for the response from
your Department as to whether you actually took out that segment of the North-South
Collector Road as a requirement or not, 'cause I thought we were gonna try and do
what we could and slowly collect what we could. If you're gonna, if that is your intent
then, you know, then we need to make sure that those are in that, in those plans. I
wanna see the completion of the North-South Collector Road and I'm willing to move
the money to the North-South Collector Road. But I'd like to see that. .. if that's going to
be part of the EA. So is that, do you know if that section is gonna be part of the EA
when you make the request. .. or is that. .. you don't know?
MR. GOODE: As what's going to be part of the EA?
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: That area just before Wailea.
MR. GOODE: Yeah, the EA. ..the North-South Collector Road, you know ... the boundaries
are Uwapo Road to Kilohana. So it'll be the whole thing, except for the area we've
already built.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you, Mr. Arakawa. Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. I'm not going to take any more time in this area because
I've already spoken with Mr. Molina in regards to dealing with the traffic, because I think
all of us are ready to get hung by the people of Maui County in regards to traffic and,
and everything else. I think ... Ietters and phone calls have been ... with stronger
language, Mr. Chairman. So Mr. Molina is having a meeting in regards to traffic. I think
that this has to be the year of traffic and we are going to get hung by these people.
People have had it up to here. And so, no need to discuss this, but I think ... Mr. Molina
will have a real good meeting and hopefully we'll deal with all these traffic concerns.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much, Mr. Nishiki. Anyone else ... on this item?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Recommendation?
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Recomm ... , ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: The Chair's recommendation is that the two proposed bills pass first
reading and that County Communication 00-268 be filed.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Second.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Second.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. I have a motion from Mr. Kane, seconded by Mr. Kawano
that. .. "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING FISCAL YEAR 2001 BUDGET FOR
THE COUNTY OF MAUl AS IT PERTAINS TO THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT
PROJECT APPROPRIATION FOR KIHEI-MAKENA COMMUNITY PLAN DISTRICT"
pass first reading and "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE NO.
2866, BILL NO. 48 (2000) RELATING TO THE ISSUANCE OF GENERAL
OBLIGATION BONDS OF THE COUNTY OF MAUl" pass first reading, and then the
filing of Communication 00-268. Discussion, Members? Seeing none, all in favor say
aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed say no. Motion is carried.
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Arakawa, Carroll, Johnson, Kane,
Kawano, Molina, Nishiki, Tavares, and Chair Hokama.

NOES:

None.

MOTION CARRIED
ACTION:

BF-54:

FIRST READING
communication.

of

revised

proposed

bills,

and

FILING

of

PROPOSED AMENDMENT RELATING TO THE ISSUANCE OF GENERAL
OBLIGATION BONDS (COUNTYWIDE SERVICE CENTER - $700,000)
(C.C. No. 01-30)

CHAIR HOKAMA: Members, at this time I'm going to take the testimony as it regards to Item
No. 50 ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Four.
CHAIR HOKAMA: .. .4 and then I'm going to call a short recess so you may have time to
review the lease, a copy of the lease that has been provided for you before we enter
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discussion. At this time, the Chair would like to please ask Jocelyn Perreira to come
forward to speak on Item 54.
Note: Short pause while Ms. Perreira approaches the podium.

. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..

MS. PERREIRA: Good morning, Chair Hokama, Council members.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Morning.
MS. PERREIRA: My name is Jocelyn Perreira. I am the Tri-Isle Main Street Program
Coordinator and the Executive Director of the Wailuku Main Street Association Tri-Isle
Main Street Resource Center. I'm here today to convey the sentiment of the Wailuku
Main Street Association.
We have through many years of community based involvement supported and
encouraged the retention of government services in Wailuku. Our recommendations for
updating the Wailuku-Kahului Community Plan focused on government civic center as
the key anchor to the continued revitalization of Wailuku town. It is also in keeping with
smart growth concepts espoused by Main Street and other worthy groups. Wailuku is a
walking town. Once you are able to find parking, you can easily take advantage of the
variety of services ... and as you are pulled from one section of town to another, it
encourages one-stop shopping, dining experience. Having a good reason to come into
town is important. Accessing government services necessitates a trip to Wailuku. This
provides a wonderful opportunity to generate more foot traffic. Once they park, they can
be enticed into a variety of curio shops, take care of immediate needs, enjoy the
ambiance, and be beckoned to stay and enjoy lunch.
Our new Chair Goro Hokama and I have discussed this issue, and he has expressed
support for continuing our position. I asked his permission to restate his opinion. He
noted that historically... And I should note that Goro Hokama has served notably on
the County Council for many, many years and he is very much apprised and
in-the-know of the areas and what has transpired ... in relation to suggestions to
move ... government services out of town. Obviously, it's not a new idea. It's one that's
been brought up before. He noted historically that there has always been resistance to
moving services out of Wailuku. When he served on the Council, there was always
support for centralized services and for the County center to remain in Wailuku.
We hope this helps you in some of your deliberations, but most especially when there is
consideration for relocating government services, that you think of Wailuku first and
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foremost. It is an important anchor to Wailuku and its continued revitalization. Thank
you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Perreira. Any questions for Jocelyn? Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: So, Jocelyn, in a nutshell you're saying don't do Kahului?
MS. PERREIRA: ... Our position is to encourage and support retaining government services
in Wailuku.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: So in a nutshell you're saying not to do it in Kahului?
MS. PERREIRA: The Board didn't take that issue up, whether to, to approve or, or disapprove
of it. They just strongly wanted to emphasize the position to retain government services
in Wailuku.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: So to leave all of these facilities in Wailuku area? That's
what the Board is recommending?
MS. PERREIRA: Centralized government services to continue to encourage and emphasize
the importance of having it remain in the civic center.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much, Mr. Arakawa. Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you. Jocelyn, is it possible to, to ... get an opinion from the
Board? We're looking at a five-year lease. I've made my position known that as far as
a temporary relief to a situation that is ... some may consider almost a crisis level, so as
far as what we're dealing with now down at the swimming pool complex area ...
MS. PERREIRA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: " .and this, this would help to alleviate that situation down there,
but ultimately in line with what you and the Board has talked about in retaining here in
Wailuku town. Would you be able to get. .. perhaps an opinion from the, the Board
through a discussion and provide us with a stand on, on this particular issue with
moving it temporarily or-MS. PERREIRA: Well-COUNCILMEMBER KANE: --just give us an overall, you know--
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MS. PERREIRA: --certainly-COUNCILMEMBER KANE: --stand on it?
MS. PERREIRA: --it can be brought up at the next meeting. That is not a problem. I, I, I do
want to state, though, for the record that the opinion that was rendered by the Wailuku
Main Street Association is a result of having many meetings with the community at large
in developing, when they developed their recommendations to the Wailuku-Kahului
Community Plan. I do know that there is a concern about band-aid fixes as opposed to
dealing with long-term solutions and whether or not that would be appropriate.
However, I will ask the Board to revisit the issue if that is the ... desire of the Council.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you. And one other point, Mr. Chairman, if I may is ... also
recognizing and I'm sure you and, and, and the Main Street Association is aware of, I
guess, the complexities of... of what we're dealing with infrastructurally within the
centralized area here in Wailuku town and ... also keeping in mind ... the situation that
the, again, our DMV... and their space or their limited space down at the area is now,
and keeping that in mind as far as us needing to do something. In other words, a
band-aid approach may be necessary at this point in time in order to allow us time to do
something the right way and, and do the proper planning and what not. So I'm just
asking if the Board can come forward with a ...
MS. PERREIRA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: ... some recommendation or suggestion to this body.
MS. PERREIRA: I just wanna get a point of clarification-COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Please.
MS. PERREIRA: --if I might. When you talk about the DMV, you're meaning to continue that
service down at the War Memorial Complex?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: No. What I'm ... I'm, I'm suggesting that the reason why we're
moving forward, uh ... in our discussions last year with the SERV project in what was
being proposed to us is that there, there was information given to us that they have a
situation down there that is, uh ... and like I referred to earlier... almost a crisis level. I
mean they are in a place when they opened up that place they had 12 employees. Now
they have 30 employees and it's the same place.
MS. PERREIRA: Uh-huh. Uh-huh.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: They, nothing has changed and so the whole idea of this is to
accommodate these services in a place that can provide better service to the citizens of
this island, urn ... but keeping in mind from my standpoint is if we can make sure that
our long-term goal is to retain it right here in Wailuku and not move it to a permanent
place outside of Wailuku Town. So that's, that's where I'm coming from. And so for my
clarity that's ... we're trying to apply the band-aid approach now to alleviate the situation
as it is now with the intention of in the long term we having a facility up here that can
accommodate the same intent as what we're doing now with this band-aid approach.
MS. PERREIRA: Thank you for your clarification. I really do believe that. I, I, I don't believe
that they will be opposed to some kind of very temporary situation to alleviate a
problem, but I think, and in knowing what their concern repeatedly has been, uh,
temporary-permanent, there is a concern when you do something temporary,
temporarily that somehow it turns out to be temporary-permanent, but I will in fact
convey the concern about the need for, uh, and it's duly noted that there is need for
some immediate relief. And if the temporary solution is, uh, uh, okay with them, uh, and
then I'll report back to what their ultimately, uh, opinion is relative to that and maybe a
time limit.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you. And one final point, urn ... hopefully you can stay and
listen to the discussion because I'm sure the Administration is gonna apprise us of
currently what's going on, what's happening, what's the situation is in relation to what's
going on down at the DMV area, why they're suggesting or proposing this move and for
this appropriation and, uh ... that way you can take that information back to them.
MS. PERREIRA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Not for Jocelyn. This for you. Urn, I'm hearing Councilman
Kane quote a lot of things that I don't see in the binder. There's information that's
available on the numbers, the statistics, the growth, justification for what we're trying to
do it should be in our binder. Urn ... I'm gonna ask that it be provided so that we can
actually look at it, and since you had said we're gonna take a break after this to look at
what we have, after we get all that information then I'm gonna need another break to
look at what is not in the binder...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: .,. 'cause there's no way to do an analysiS without it.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Well noted, Mr. Arakawa. I believe that was part of the testimony that was
presented to the previous Budget Committee in the last term and so maybe during the
recess the staff can check to see, uh ... where it is as part of last term's information.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yeah. If it was part of the previous discussion, why isn't it in
the binder if I may ask?
CHAIR HOKAMA: I cannot answer that at this time, Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Because is, isn't all the information that's discussed under a
topic-CHAIR HOKAMA: Is it part of our...
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: --put in the binders?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Chairman.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, uh, for clarity sake, we did put a condition on this lease,
Alan. And it would entail Administration to come here and discuss this subject matter as
far as the time of lease, location and everything else. That's the reason why they're
here now so that the Council-COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: But again-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --has some authority to determine whether we wanna see this
funding occur or not.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: But again the information that you're discussing, if you had
discussed that and it was available, then it should be within the, the, material that we
have to look at. Now I feel we're at a disadvantage and that it's not here, and I'm not
gonna be able to analyze it and go through a lot of that. I'm willing to listen to what the,
the Administration has but, you know, when I went and picked up the binder and looked
at it, there's just nothing in there. So what I'm hearing from Council member Kane if you
guys heard that, had that in the last Council, um, we were not, I was not purview to that
discussion and I need to be brought up to date on it and that information is stuff that we
should have.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you Mr. Arakawa. And Mr. Nishiki's very accurate in that, uh, as the
Chairman of the previous Budget Committee when this issue was brought up and I
recall Ms. Tavares made it a very strong point also that prior to authorizing the funding
the Administration would have to return and explain everything to the members before
we would continue to proceed and this part of...
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Again, I have no problem with that. I, I understand it was a
good point. All, the point I'm trying to make, in order to understand what's there, if there
was material that was presented for those of us that are sitting here and doing the
analysis-CHAIR HOKAMA: And we'll, we'll follow-up Mr. Arakawa. We will follow-up.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I had a question for the testifier.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, I'm sorry. Uh, Jocelyn if you would please indulge us and come
back to the podium, please. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I, I guess I'm coming out a little hot here on the mike. (chuckle)
Sorry. Okay. Sorry about that. Jocelyn, um, you know, I have a appreciation for small
business having come from that, uh, family in that, involved in small business. What is
your assessment from, you know, regarding feedback from the merchants in Wailuku
Town?
MS. PERREIRA: Well, the feedback that we've gotten from the community in general, you
must re, remember that the Wailuku Main Street Association seeks to advocate for the
merchants professionals and the residents in the area, and the, the feeling has been
when they participated in helping to develop recommendations for the Updated
Wailuku-Kahului Community Plan, uh ... so we have a process in other words where we
had community meeting first and then it gets taken to the Board and then the Board
renders an opinion based on that process ... was to keep, uh, to try to do everything we
can to retain the civic center and the, the core of government services in Wailuku
because it is an important anchor for the town.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Have, uh, many merchants expressed the concern of losing
possible revenue with the government services being moved?
MS. PERREIRA: That was not discussed.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you, Mr. Molina. Any other Member has a question for Ms.
Perreira? Seeing none. Thank you very much-MS. PERREIRA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --for attending this morning.
comments will be Mr. Dennis Ichikawa.
Note:

The next person wishing to share his

Short pause.

MR. ICHIKAWA: Good morning, Chairman Hokama, Members of the Council. For the record,
please allow me to intro, introduce myself. I'm Dennis Ichikawa, the Real Property Tax
Administrator for the County of Maui.
On November 28, 2000, I appear before the Council's Budget and Finance Committee
to provide testimony in support of a lease agreement for the proposed Maui Mall office
site. Once again this morning I appear before you to submit testimony requesting
Council's approval for the Countywide Service Center Bond Fund. This funding is
critical for the much needed office space that we so much desire.
Adequate office space has always been a problem for nearly every County agency and
the Real Property Tax Division is no different. When the Real Property Tax program
was first transferred to the County in 1980, we were forced into temporary quarters that
lasted well over seven years. In 1987, we moved to our current facilities at the War
Memorial Complex. The staff count in 1987 was 12 full-time employer, employees.
Now 14 years later our personnel count has increased to 30 full-time employees.
The office space allocated in 1987 was roughly 3,000 square feet. Today our staff
count has doubled and faced with having to implement a new computer system we have
reached an absolute limit on our facilities.
We are now faced with a dilemma of not only having to implement a new computer
system, but also having to finish a definitive business process review. The work flow
re-engineering analysis has been completed with the assistance of the consulting firm of
Arthur Anderson. One of the more critical problems recognized by our consultant was
the lack of office space. It is our objective to not only install a new computer system,
but to also improve the work efficiency within our office.
The County will have invested well over $2 million in acquiring this new computer
system, but unless we acquire more office space, we could never even begin

- 40-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

February 13, 2001

addressing some of our work flow issues. In other words, we would have acquired a
21 st century computer software system, but 1980's work flow problems.
Given our present facilities, our preliminary design requirements clearly demand a
minimum of 6,000 square feet of office space to accommodate the Real Property
workspace requirements. In addition, the plans to consolidate the real property tax,
refuse and also miscellaneous permit collections will require additional floor space.
Our War Memorial facilities was constructed well over a decade ago, and has
substandard electrical, air condition, ADA workspace requirement problems.
In
addition, we are in, in violation of a number of OSHA safe practice guidelines. The
County's own Fire Department has cited us on numerous occasion for fire code
violations and the list goes on and on.
If the question is asked why haven't we renovated our existing facilities, our response is
very simple. The entire gymnasium would have to be remodeled at a substantial cost to
taxpayers. We cannot build a second floor level without violating the constructual
integrity of the War Memorial Gym. In any case, the Parks Department wants
desperately to take over these facilities to meet their own expanded program
requirements.
No doubt our taxpayers, as well as our own employees, will be best served by
developing a Countywide financial service center at the Maui Mall site. With the
estimated $700,000, the renovations of the office space can begin almost immediately.
In closing, may I ask for your fair consideration to approve the proposed Service Center
Bond Fund. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much, Mr. Ichikawa. If I can also ask that you either give
us your test. .. , written testimony so we can make copies for the Members, please.
Members, questions for Mr. Ichikawa? Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you, Dennis, for appearing. You know you mentioned
with the $2 million computer system and the employees, your idea of square footage
would be 6,000. I think the question that many of us have not too much motor vehicles,
but for you is how many people actually have to come down there and with a new
system would we need people to come down. I think Charmaine in discussing or talking
with me briefly was, was looking at maybe more de-centralization, but in, in regards to
property tax, are we seeing more people needing to come there and ask for your
services rather than, you know, a more, uh, streamline process where we don't get foot
traffic with the new system and, and where we're looking at in the future?
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MR. ICHIKAWA: Well, presently as we're in the initial stage of implementing a new system,
we still have a severe customer service requirement problem. Our, our primary space is
very limited. Often times people are forced to stand in line outside of the door to make
their property tax payment. Although there's twice a year that there's a real critical
period of payments that are being received by the County, um, we find that more and
more people are coming in not only to pay their property taxes, but find out more
information about their real property holdings, uh, and we're talking average people, not
great property management groups or large property holders, but average people that
wanna know how they inherited a property, um, how these properties were in fact
transferred especially in cases where, urn, there's some questions about the title of a
Hawaiian, Hi. .. , Hawaiian title to their property. So in this case we see an increased
amount of people coming through our office space. We also share the facilities with the
Department of Motor Vehicle, and as well recognized by Councilman Kane, there's a
number of issues with their work flow problems and I'll, I'll defer later on to their
manager, Mr. Carmelito Villa, to answer some of those questions. But as far as the real
property area is concerned, we find an increasingly, uh, a number of people needing
access to the information. Hopefully with the new system we can provide more
electronic access, but I think in the true sense of serving the community, people wanna
talk to people directly and, and I think our staff is better capable of, of providing that sort
of services to the County even with the new system implemented later this year.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So you understand but, but the, the goal is to create more
information through the electronic equipment thereby--hopefully now--your goal of not
having people drive from Wailea, Lahaina--the gamut--Upcountry. If that's not your
goal, then I've got some problems 'cause that's what's causing the traffic also-MR. ICHIKAWA: Most definitely.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:
--because we're not really looking at in the future ...
--(CHANGE OF TAPE)-- ... people from having to drive by then able to access
information, educating and, and use this information because hey, you know, just as
Mr. Apana wants every school child to have a computer in the classrooms, hopefully
this is the direction that we're headed for within this County. Is that your direction? And
stay away from Department of Motor Vehicles because we'll have that, that question,
question time for the gentleman, but is that the thrust?
MR. ICHIKAWA: Uh ...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And can you give me an idea being that, I'm sure you're a
number's man, uh, how many people come a day? And is there certain times when
they come? And let me ask you this, how can we also eliminate the ability for these
people not coming? Okay, so--
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MR. ICHIKAWA: I'll defer most of the, uh ... the responses to Finance Director Wes Lo, but to
answer the, the latest amount of questions that you've listed ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: (Chuckle).
MR. ICHIKAWA: ... we estimated as much as 50 people per day come into office whether it
be to pay for their property taxes or just general information. We also receive, uh,
statistically we kept a count the past year we received over 14,000 phone calls just
general dir ... , uh, questions about real property or real property related matters. It, it
certainly gonna be directly impacting property taxes, but we have questions directed to
our office regarding planning issues. Whenever they need to set up a public hearings,
uh, people are often referred to our office, people seeking liquor licenses come to our
office to do research. So there's a lot of people requesting information from our, our,
our program and we are looking definitely to improve our electronic means of median of,
of availing this information to the general public. We'll have a web site established in a
few months, and certainly we will be encouraging these people to use our public access
terminal that we'll be making available at the new center if it's approved. And Mr. Lo
can certainly expand on the, um, the other questions that you had raised earlier.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, Dennis, only because, Mr. Chairman if I may.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: If that, if that isn't your goal, then I can see you coming to hitting
us both ways--one, more space; two, more people. Because that's what you're creating
here a people-generating center.
MR. ICHIKAWA: Um ... in response to that I don't believe in my
sense that we'll be
expanding our staff. We would probably--we have 30 employees at this point in time.
We would probably looking at expanding their work performance in other areas.
Primarily the Anderson consulting group has looked into improving the business
process, looking at their position descriptions. A lot of the position descriptions were
developed in the 1950's and in torder [sic}, in order to meet the demands of the public
today, we are now looking at redescribing this positions to, to meet these demands. So
to answer your immediate question, there will not, in my estimation, be an increase in
staff. They will be redirected to other areas to better serve the public and perhaps
certainly improve the efficiency in doing our basic job which is to collect tax revenues for
the County.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.
probably ask it, but is the, uh--

I'll ask this question for Charmaine because she'll

CHAIR HOKAMA: (chuckle) Mind reader, huh, Mr. Nishiki.

- 43-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

February 13, 2001

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Is the thrust towards not centralization but decentralization
because we've got pockets now of Kihei, Wailea that are big. We've got DMV over
there, okay. We got Lahaina, we got DMV over there. I don't know if you got property
tax collection there. Um ... but is, is that a thrust of the millions of dollars that we are
about to embark on spending?
MR. ICHIKAWA: I'll probably defer it to Finance Director Wes Lo on that matter.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Okay. Thank you. I'm done. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you, Mr. Nishiki, and ... (chuckle) ... hold on a second. I didn't
know you could read minds there, Mr. Nishiki. Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yeah, um ... 1 was just gonna ask, are you gonna have
Dennis come back afterwards? I can ask him the questions when we're asking the
Department. Or if you're just gonna have him testify now, then I'll ask him questions
now.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, if we need him as a resource person, Mr. Arakawa, you know, I'll
definitely, we can always call him back.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: If you could have him stick around as a resource person, but
I'll ask him some of the questions now if...or I can wait on it if you want to-CHAIR HOKAMA: I, I would prefer Members, please, if we could just get the formal portion of
the testimony over and then I still intend to take a short recess and then we can get into
the detailed questions, Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay, and then in the interim you're gonna get all that other
information that-CHAIR HOKAMA: We'll get as much information as possible.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Thank you very much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: This item was filed last term. Okay, anyone else has a specific thing for Mr.
Ichikawa? If not, thank you very much, Dennis. And if you could please be back when
we reconvene. The last person we have this morning, Members, is Mr. Carmelito Villa.
Note: Short pause while Mr. Villa approaches the podium.

MR. VILLA: Good morning, Mr. Chairman and Council members.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Good morning.
MR. VILLA: Thank you for the opportunity to address you today. The reason why I'm here is to
ask again for your support and approval of the funding of the Service Center on behalf
of the staff and employees of the Division of Motor Vehicles and Licensing.
Your approval and support will provide a various revenue source programs to deliver
services from a centralized facility that we have been waiting for, for a very, very, very
long time.
Our Motor Vehicles and Licensing Division employees are really looking forward to the
move into the new facility as it will provide us the opportunity to deliver the best levels of
service to our cus ... , customers.
When I started my employment with the County in 1994, I remember numerous
employees telling me how dismay and discouraged they were that the DMV and Real
Property Tax divisions re ... , um ... re-Iocation plan to a new centralized facility in the
Wailuku Industrial area or by the Post Office, um ... did not materialize. As a result, we
were tasked with the very difficult challenge of improving our service levels productivity
and operating within a very limited physical plant environment. As you are aware the
DMV central office operation is presently located on opposite ends of the War Memorial
Gym with driver licensing; disabled parking placard issuance; periodic motor vehicle, uh,
inspection--it's the safety inspection program; abandon vehicles--that's the collection of
the abandon vehicles from public highways; commercial driver's licensing and financial
responsibility functions on one side of the gym and in the other side is motor vehicle
registration and business licensing. We do have signs at the front of the gym, however,
customers coming in for service will often find themselves at the wrong side of the gym
after waiting in line and I advise that they need to go to the other side for the specific
transaction they wish to accomplish. A centralized service center facility would truly
help the customers coming in.
I would like to point out several other operational limitations of our present physical
plant. Our Motor Vehicle Registration office is so small that we're not able to keep our
files and working supplies within the office. We presently utilize a Mats ... , 24 foot
Matson container at the back side of the pool near the tennis courts. It's a storage
area ... and a storage area under the swimming pool bleachers and also the old Post
Office. The logistics of supplies is quite a drain on the operations. As you know we do
place annual orders for license plates, uh, statewide to take advantage of the, um,
costs. However, when they come in bulk, we do have a drop shift only to a certain
extent. We have to stage it into three different locations and moving those, uh, plates
is, um, quite atrocious sometimes.
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The lack of space in our Motor Vehicle Registration office necess ... , necessitates using
hallways to store files and operational supplies, and this creates a very cluttered and
insufficient work environment. As Mr. Ichikawa has pointed out, we receive numerous
citations from our very own Maui, uh, Maui Fire Department, and it's actually to the point
if there was a fire in there, urn ... the Chief or the Captain that came in at that time had
told us well, this situation here is actually a safety to our firefighters. However, at this
point given that, urn ... the amount of space that we have, we have really no recourse
but to do that, urn ... or... 1 don't know what else the solution will be.
Customer service windows workstations, the Motor Vehicle Registration office were built
in the 1980's when the typewriter was the, uh, major piece of equipment in each
workstation. Since then, with the advent of personal computers and other technological
advances, we have migrated into the computer age with scanners, personal computers,
bar code readers, and printers as the standard for each of our workstations. This
resulted in a very uncomfortable, cluttered and insufficient workstation that are not
conducive to public customer service. In the afternoon our, our employees, urn, at the
service windows have complained of headaches that is caused by the afternoon glare
because as the sun goes over the, urn ... and shines down it glares off the pool wall and
our employees are looking directly at that wall. I've asked Parks, urn, that when they do
paint to that perhaps, uh, make it a little darker. However, it really affects them and
those are the people that at that point in time have to represent the County in servicing
that individual.
We manually process our mail-in motor vehicle renewals because we do not have the
room to install additional equipment which would involve our processing capability and
efficiency. These additional equipments would also enable us to efficiently handle
future, as Mr. Nishiki alluded to, internet motor vehicle registration renewals and making
that a more efficient process and less, urn, labor intensive.
The customer waiting area for our MVR customers is atrocious. Customers waiting in
line are, number one, blinded by the morning sun because of our beautiful sunrise,
uh ... are forced to sit on wooden benches bothered by the afternoon glare from the sun
reflecting from, off of the swimming pool walls, urn, wait in misery when it rains like it did
this morning, and endure the wind tunnel effect as the trade winds have channeled
between the pool and the gym. This morning it was raining, it drizzled when I was
coming up with a slight breeze and those customers that were waiting in line were pretty
miserable.
In preparation for the upcoming relocation to the new service center, the DMVL is
presently embarked in a business process review just like Real Property Tax. We
began this process in July of this year. Our goals are to document our existing
processes, redesign or forward engineer these processes, increase our operational
efficiency and deliver the best, best possible service to our customers. These goals are
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being accomplished with direct input and involvement from our DMVL employees. Our
employees are putting forth a lot of extra efforts, devotion and commitment to making
the project a success. It is through their efforts that we have been able to put into place
improvements to our present operation we term quick wins. We are finalizing the
process. We're in the midst of the forward engineering portion. We have employees
meeting on how the structure should be, how we should be servicing the customer. We
are more focusing towards what we need to do to provide better customer service. And
certainly a new facility is needed at this time. However, if this is not approved, we would
then be back, probably be put back to the 1994 level where say okay, we've waited so
many years for this facility. Now we're right upon it. If it doesn't materialize, I believe
that our employees would feel a big, big let down.
So on behalf of the staff and employees of our division, I ask for your support, um, and
assistance by approving the bond issuance. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you very much, Mr. Villa. Questions, Members, at this time?
Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: What is the total square footage in office space necessary for
the Department of Motor Vehicles?
MR. VILLA: Including lobby space, I would estimate it to be about 6,000 square feet.
Currently we have, uh, I believe Mr. Lo can, uh, he has the exact measurements of our
current area as well as the proposed base allocations for the new facility. We are
currently trying to layout the redesign flow that we conceived, um, that we're looking at
so that it provides for a better customer flow.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. No, my, my question is no matter where you are, you
could be in Wailuku or Whatever, wherever, I think that's the question of concern. Now
this 6,000 would--what?--catch you up to today and your needs?
MR. VILLA: Um ... pretty much I would believe.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So that's minimal?
MR. VILLA: That is correct. In that-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So your staff-MR. VILLA: --I really have not factored in, I'm not factoring in the required storage, storage
spaces, etc., and whether or not in the future we are gonna migrate over to imaging of
our documents that would certainly save space and, uh, help with the retrieval of and
verification of documents.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So your manpower there in Wailuku now is for the entire
division is, you know, Dennis gave me, gave us, uh, an idea of in '87 twelve, till today
30, an increase of 18. You have any idea of what the growth has caused you to need in
manpower?
MR. VILLA: As far as I know the last expansion that we had were, uh, when, um ... was quite
awhile ago. We have not had any expansion, uh ... overall staffing level, um, couple of
fiscal years ago one of my driver licensing positions became unfunded. So that's still
currently unfunded so I'm working with one less. I have a total of I think 44 employees
at this point which covers the satellite offices throughout the County also, and we do
use our employees from the main office to backfill into those satellite offices whenever
those, uh, staff that mans the office are on leave.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So as of today you would need 12--or rather 16,000 square
feet?
MR. VILLA: From the-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Now, in your future plans ... or do you have future plans for
needed growth and more space when you look at where this County is going to go with
the process and servicing of our community in the Division of Motor Vehicles?
MR. VILLA: Well, for the Division of Motor Vehicles, we are looking at ways to, number one,
how to service the community better through via the internet. How can, uh, renewal of
registration ... this year we're putting forth legislation to issue one year driver's
permit--right now it's six months--so they don't have to come back as often. We're
putting forth renewal by mail for your driver's license. Within the State, uh, presently it's
only when, uh, the license holder is out of state. We're looking at trying, um, the
possibility of increasing the mail-in registration renewals that we have coming in instead
of having people come in to wait in line. We're looking at putting forth drop boxes at the
Satellite offices so that people from the communities there--it's a one person operation
at this point--they may drop off their renewals and will process it through the mail-in
processing center concept that we have and return it to them as fast as possible.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So have you looked at any other counties operation say
Honolulu because they've got on-line vehicle registration right now.
MR. VILLA: Yes, I have.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And ... any comments?
MR. VILLA: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Or did you go and speak to them also and is it working?
MR. VILLA: Actually ... I'm ...we are heading towards that way. Number one, I've, I actually
met with the vendor that provided the comprehensive internet programming for the City
& County of Honolulu, Mr. Calabrese. I have met with their administrator. I took my
supervisor, um ... to, um. . .
our supervisor to Wailuku and looked at their system
on how they've downloaded it, how they've set it up. My plan was if, um ... and how
automated that process is, and the way it actually, um ... 1 guess its form is a person
registers their renewal via the internet and it gets downloaded directly to their computer
system and, um ... payment is processed and it's automatically captured and a renewal
registration is mailed out, okay. However, in order to do that, I need the capacity to
implement a mailing processing center so where I can receive those electronic transfer
files and have it ease, uh ... and have it converted over and processed as a renewal
registration. So I have looked at that. Hopefully we will be able to implement it. That
would be one of the strong recommendations coming out of this business process
review, um ... and that's the best answer I can give you at this point, but I have looked
at it to that extent, Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And is it working?
MR. VILLA: It's not installed yet. I, I, you know ...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No, in Honolulu?
MR. VILLA: Um ... Iast I checked, uh ... about a month or so ago they started ... 1 think in
November they were still having some, uh, bugs, problems working out, uh, but I believe
it's working. It's the direction to go. The trend of the DMV is to, um ... try to alleviate
people or customers from coming in.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right. So, did Honolulu give you any numbers in regards to
what they've been able to eliminate in regards to people having to drive?
MR. VILLA: Um ...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Percentages and what each-MR. VILLA: Well, the best. .. the best percentage I can give you at this point was from their
service provider. Normally when you provide an internet type connection for motor
vehicle registration, you will receive--he quoted me between 5 to 8 percent diversion.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. And, and, and 8 to 5 percent diversion ... Iet me ask you
this. What does 1 percent diversion equate to a numbers of customers?
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MR. VILLA: Urn ... okay, we register about 120 plus thousand cars a year. So 1 percent of
that.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: What is it?
MR. VILLA: It's ...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Twelve hundred.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: How much?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Twelve hundred.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Twelve hundred. So then 8 percent would be 96 ...
MR. VILLA: About 9 - 10,000 maybe.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Nine thousand diversion. Okay. Is Honolulu also have a lot of
satellite? And is this the direction of Maui County also-MR. VILLA: Yes-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --if I may ask Charmaine's question.
(laughter by the Committee)

MR. VILLA: Yeah, the City & County of Honolulu has, urn, our DMV set up as a matter of fact
is of all the counties our set up, urn, and positioning of the staff, etc., is most parallel
with the City & County. The big difference with the City & County of Honolulu is they
have a centralized facility where only commercial transactions are done for motor
vehicle. Their driver licensing offices are all strictly licensing, etc. And most of their
motor vehicle are registration transactions, uh ... and various license renewals are
performed by their satellite City Halls and they have opened quite a bit. However, it is
through the set up that we have and piggy backing with the State and we're able to take
advantage of certain things. For example, with Lanai with a population of 2,000 - 3,000
people I'm still able to--and Hana with the small population, uh, since it's, uh ... we're,
we have very good association with the other counties. We have one driver license
camera system, and for a stand alone system Hana would not be feasible to put that in.
However, if you look at it for the State, you know, we've taken advantage of that and
provided, urn, capability within those smaller communities that we're trying to service.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Well, let me ask you this question. What do you now have in
Kihei-Wailea, number one. And where do you wanna go there? What do you have in
Upcountry, Haiku, Makawao, Kula? Where do you wanna go there, from there? And
what do you have in Lahaina, Kaanapali and where do you wanna go from there? I
think those would be the three major areas of population that people would demand
these kinds of services--property tax and DMV--but just answer for you own DMV area.
MR. VILLA: Uh, what I have there right now is a, um, satellites, uh, operation in each of those
locations. We have one at 1043 Makawao Avenue. That's on the first floor there that
services the Upcountry area. Kihei is at Azeka I Shopping Center in the back of ACE
Hardware and, um ... International, uh--IHOP--House of Pancakes. At the Lahaina Civic
Center I have a, um, an office there. Part of this business process review we're going
through is to determine what levels of service will be needed at each of those satellite
offices. So it's part of our, our forwarding engineering and looking at our processes at
this point.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: What are your hours at each one and how many people do you
service in a month? Do you have that count?
MR. VILLA: Um, currently each of those three offices has a motor vehicle licensing clerk,
um ... yeah, motor vehicle registration clerk and one driver licensing clerk totally
separate of each other and, um ... and, uh ... and I do dispatch a driver license
examiner at certain schedules to administer road test at that facility.
Transaction wise Kihei, uh, seems to, for drivers licensing we did approximately 12,000
transactions. Last calendar year Makawao we were only open three days a week. We
did 7,300. Lahaina we did 10,300, um .. .for... compared to Wailuku total transactions
was 103,000. For motor vehicle, Kihei had 13,000 for motor vehicle, Lahaina was
10,500 and Makawao was 8,200. And those are the statistical numbers that we have.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And you said Upcountry you only open three days a week.
MR. VILLA: Um ... that's what we have open with, uh, first when we opened that office it was
open I believe two days and then we expanded it to three. However, when we opened
that office up there, we did not expand staff. We had to take staff from our Wailuku
office and allocate it out to that, um, facility.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And, and in Kihei how many days a week?
MR. VILLA: Um, Kihei, um .. .the services use to be available five days per week.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: What time to what time? I know that there's--
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MR. VILLA: From eight, uh .. .from eight to ten forty five; twelve to three thirty.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And in Lahaina?
MR. VILLA: Same thing.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Five days a week?
MR. VILLA: Uh, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Yes, Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Mr. Villa.
MR. VILLA: Yes, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: In, uh ... your space requirement you said you need 6,000
feet? And when Councilmember Nishiki was asking you, you suggesting all these other
improvements that you need-MR. VILLA: Well, that's the ... yeah, when ...
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Is that 6,000?
MR. VILLA: That's my best guess at this point, Mr. Arakawa. However, to put in the mail-in
center and all the ... depends on the layout of the facility if it's flat and how we, uh, how
we would lay it out.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: If it's flat, what do you think you need?
MR. VILLA: I'd say 6 to 7,000.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: So you'd need probably an additional 1,000 feet? Six
thousand plus, another 1,000 feet for the layout? The storage of your sign, your license
plates and signs, you said that you needed to have it in a central area because now you
got it scattered in three different areas. Is that part of that 6,000 feet?
MR. VILLA: Um ... not right now.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: So that would still occur, where the signs would not be able
to store it there.
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MR. VILLA: Well, that's the outside storage, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Outside storage. So that's not part of the 6,000 feet. What
approximate size area do you need for that signs? What are you using right now?
MR. VILLA: For my ... I'm sharing it, I have it at the post office, um ...
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: What's the approximate square footage? Guess.
MR. VILLA: I'd say for the license plate alone, um, 25 by 40 maybe, 20 by 40.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: So about 800 square feet?
employee requirements are, you mentioned that you
you actually had a decrease of one. For the last two
long has it been since you've actually had an increase

In trying to understand what your
haven't had an increase in staff,
years ... or how far, how far, how
in staff?

MR. VILLA: Not since I've been there.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Which is about how long?
MR. VILLA: Six years.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: So in the last six years you have not had an increase in
staff?
Note: Short pause.

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: And yet the facilities ... what kind of equipment have you
added onto the facilities that, um ... has taken up this additional space that you need?
MR. VILLA: We have printers, complete workstations, computerized cashiering systems, we
got bar code readers, um ...
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: So in the last six years since you've been there as far as
workspace, uh, requirements, about how much square footage do you think you've
expanded into that you needed that you've condensed all this stuff into?
MR. VILLA: I don't understand the question.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: If you were to take all the equipment that you added in in the
space that you had and you were to create new office space for that, how much new
office space do you think you'd need?
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MR. VILLA: Well, as far as for that workstation, the first thing I would-COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: For all that equipment that you've added into this point.
MR. VILLA: Right, but for each workstation, um ... 1would, I would have to look at the number
one problem that I have right now over there is the configuration of that workstation,
okay. All I have is counter and a return, and from there all of the equipment, CPU's,
typewriter, CRT scanner, stamping machines, are all on the counters, it's not properly
placed. That's why the new facility would really be great towards, towards that end.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: And if you had a facility, does it really matter where the
facility is as far as your, as far as what you need for your work requirements?
MR. VILLA: No, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: So if the County were to establish its own facilities, we would
create a new building that you'd be happy with that?
MR. VILLA: Um ... as long as we're able to design it and have it flow the way it is, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: If you could design it and have it flow the way you want it.
MR. VILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: 'Cause that would be an advantage to how we would do it.
MR. VILLA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: As far as computer hookups, wiring, things of that nature, if
you had control of that and you could design it into your floor plan, is that something that
would be desirable?
MR. VILLA: Uh ... yes. However, one comment if I may make on that, Mr. Arakawa, is I'd
have to refer back to the experience I got when I first started was boy, Lito, here we are.
We were about to move. Now we're not gonna move and we just forgotten down here.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: And I can understand that very, very much where you
actually do need more space to work on. In my mind there's no question that you need
more space, and I'm trying to understand what your requirements are. If you were to
just move down to another facility, you'd still have to put in--I'm trying to understand
what kind of wiring you'd need, what kind of infrastructure you'd need for, for your work.
Just, is just space like a flat office space? You don't have to really do any rewiring--
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MR. VILLA: No, we would need network communication because all of our satellite offices are,
are networked together, uh, running off one server, I would need a computer system.
And from what I understand the real property tax system may have some imaging
capabilities for down the road that we may be able to take advantage of. So those type
of technological infrastructure is actually part of our future in how we conduct business
especially as we try to take services out to the community.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Well, I, I'm questioning this because if you're gonna be doing
this this year, you have to have in mind what you're gonna be moving to, what kind of
requirements you're gonna need.
MR. VILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: So if you have that in mind what kind of infrastructure need
you're gonna need-MR. VILLA: For that, for that?
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: --because you're gonna move right away.
MR. VILLA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: That's what I'm asking.
MR. VILLA: Right. What we're doing now is we're, we are actually meeting with the
consultants and 2020 DeSign and they are working on the office layout as far as the
infrastructure, um ... and very soon I'll need to get MIS to look at our connectivity
requirements and putting that forth to be connected with the Statewide systems that we
have.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: So basically what you need are phone lines and then power
lines?
MR. VILLA: We need phone lines, computer lines, computer systems, um ... it's the basic
infrastructure power.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: So if that were put into a facility you'd be able to use that
facility?
MR. VILLA: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: The question I'm gonna, I'm gonna get to afterwards is if you
put it all in Woolworth, you ... you put it all in there, are you gonna be able to remove it?
MR. VILLA: It's the same question I see now if we move to Woolworth's at this point, will we
be able to take our computer equipment and the answer to that will be yes-COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: So it's-MR. VILLA: --unless it's, um ... it's ...we're converting over to a new type of system like real
property tax system is .
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: So in what, everything that you're doing you'd be able to
take with you and you'd be able to work?
MR. VILLA: That is, that is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: So you'd be able to take it out and you'd be able to move it
someplace else?
MR. VILLA: Not to the extent that maybe you're referring to certain things. For example, if you
were to relocate my entire operation lock, stock, and barrel, um, without any downtime,
um ... you probably would need a whole new cabling system. I'm not sure exactly what.
The architects probably would be able to tell you that better as far as the logistics of
relocating your current equipment to a new facility.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: And in your current facility, um, I'm hoping that the
Administration will be able to show us pictures or we can have some visual what
actually occurring there-MR. VILLA: I'll defer that to Mr. Lo.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: --so that we can, we can understand what, what the real
conditions are and how cramped they are or what the spacing requirements are. In
your opinion as far as what, what was stated about OSHA requirements and health and
safety, in what way right now would you say you're violating those rules?
MR. VILLA: I have items in ... stored in the hallway by egress, um ... unit, our filing cabinets as
you come into the back door. I have one outlet that is shared by many people, uh,
stationed-COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA:
If we were able, if we were to give you,
have--what?--about how many square feet right now?
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MR. VILLA: Uh ... um ... MVR I'd say 40 by .. .40 by 40. Two thousand square feet.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: It's 2,000 square feet. So you're saying you need an
additional 4,000 or 5,000 square feet to be able to operate efficiently?
MR. VILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay. Mr. Chairman, I know you wanna break. So can I call
him back later on and I'll ask further questions.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Arakawa. Yes, by all means, we'll be able to call Mr. Villa
back. Okay, Members, the Chair's gonna call for a ten minute recess .... (gavel) . ..
RECESS:

11:17 a.m.

RECONVENE:

11 :33 a.m.

CHAIR HOKAMA:
... (gavel). . . Committee on Budget and Finance will reconvene.
Members, the Chair will be asking in a very short while for a deferral. I know there's a
lot of questions that you folks have and you folks, uh ... would, uh ... Iike to continue
reviewing documentation that has been requested. So at this time though I would like to
at least give Mr. Lo an opportunity to make any comments that he would like to share
with the Committee this morning.
MR. LO: Mr. Chair, thank you. Urn ... in listening to the testimony this morning and hearing
the questions from the Council members, I guess I'd like to sort of start off and say that
I, I, I believe that we are, uh ... 1 perceive that we're all heading in the same direction,
uh, both the Administration and the Council. Firstly, if I could speak to just a couple
items.
Number one, I think it's, it's pretty apparent that we do need to do something about the
space requirements at the Department of Motor Vehicles and Real Property to
effectuate efficiencies. I think it's a critical matter, uh, particularly that we review this as
the backbone to providing better services out to the satellite areas and the outlining
areas to provide better service to them.
For example, I think on some motor vehicle registration transactions, uh, the motor
vehicle staff out of the satellites actually fax paper back to the central offices and then
again it is faxed back. So we basically entail two people doing one job. So our... it is
our long-term vision that we provide these service not only electronically, but we can
utilize electronics and information technology as part of the Mayor's SERV initiatives to
have cross-trained employees out there. For example, up in Makawao area we have
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our highways baseyard, we have Department of Motor Vehicles, um ... office , we have
parks facilities at Eddie Tam Gym and Mayor Hannibal Tavares Center, um ... and you
do different transactions at each of one those locations. You could go and file for your
refuse at the highways office. You pay your department of motor vehicles at the
Department of Motor Vehicles office. You reserve Eddie Tam Gym at Eddie Tam Gym
so on and so forth. But providing the information technology backbone it is our dream
that you will be able to go to one location to do all your transactions.
What's particularly important about this is as we move forward into this area, we'll better
be able to track and log things. For example, um ... uh, I think there were some talk in
the paper about the Namauu Place and the fire hazard removal area. We do not track
our revenues well. At the Treasure Department when I stepped into office, we had a
cash box to handle our refuse collections. So how would I be able to stop somebody
who's, uh, violated or owes the County money for any fire hazard removal violations for
doing the other County business? I do not have that ability right now. It's critical that
we get to that area where we can create almost a cus ... , customer information file to
deal with these types of transactions and better track our revenues. So for, for
operationally it is critical that we put in this backbone as fast as possible to serve the
community not only the central community. I think there's little bit too much has been
spoken to the centralized customer service center, but it's more providing service
centers or providing service to the communities. Um ... again, Lito will be putting in his
motor vehicle registration hopefully by June or July. We've already scheduled meetings
with them. Dennis is starting on with, uh ... his GIS web site capabilities which will allow
internet access. We're hoping to put stand-alone systems out in the satellite areas so
people on Molokai, Lanai, etc., who do not have access to this information, can go to a
stand-alone computer system in these areas and get that information. I mean it's, it's,
it's, it's ashamed that, um ... in several of these areas we have no ability. They have to
come into town. So .. .from an operational standpoint that is, that is where we're
heading.
As far as, uh, location, um, I, I, I once was a ... the president of the Wailuku Main Street
Association and Wailuku is my place of residence. Um ... we do also believe, and I
have heard this from the Council members time and time again, that we do need to look
at an overall plan for the relocation of the County offices. However, in our estimation
and analysis, to find a suitable location and to buy and build in an adequate--I mean
within a five to seven year time would be aggressive. Our Wailea fire station has been
ongoing for years and, uh ...we have just actually now starting design work and we're
still at least a year and a half away on probably, uh ... and, and you know we have site
control, etc. I mean there are a lot of issues that deal with it, um, so ... but we do
believe that it is correct to start looking around for, um, uh, a place to centralize
locations, um ...the Mayor and the Administration do believe that the County offices
should reside in the Wailuku area.
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So, um, I think, you know, we're talking about a lot of details and we'd be happy to
answer your questions at the next meeting, but I do believe, I mean ... it's my estimation
that we all are headed in the same direction. We do need to try and expand
government services without creating increase in staff and, and trying to take advantage
of technologies and providing better services. And, um, you know we do believe that
we do need to look at County facilities in the future. However, we're out of time that,
urn ... you know I not sure that we have the lUxury of waiting another 5, 10, 15 years. I
mean again the Wailuku Brewery(?) site I think was taken up in 1993 and nothing
occurred on that. Um ... 1 even believe that the, that the War Memorial Gym was
probably meant to be a temporary area. So I hope in this, uh, our deliberations at the
next succeeding meetings that, um, um, you know, we bear this in mind that we ... 1
believe we do have the same goals and I would like to, uh ... at the next meeting also
provide some of the background on how we ended up here as far as the whole budget
process and the deliberations, uh, to the new members. But again, and, and if there's
any other items that the Council chooses for the Administration to look at in this
customer service endeavor, we'd be happy to list. We do not wanna operate in a
vacuum. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you very much, Mr. Lo. Ms. Yoshimura, you have any
comments you wanna share with the members this morning? Okay, if not, then again,
Members, the staff has, uh ... brought forward for your future review some information
and also what, uh ... Wayne's office has been kind enough to make copies of and
present to us this morning. The Chair's recommendation--yes, Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I, I just wondered if it would be appropriate because of the
shortness of the time that, uh ... 1 would be happy just to prepare my questions at least
regarding the lease and give them to the Chair before the next meeting so that at least
they would have some opportunity to answer that. That was just a thought on my part.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, Ms. Johnson, it must be catching the mind reading abilities of Mr.
Nishiki 'cause you read my mind.
(laughter by the Committee)

CHAIR HOKAMA: So if I may please ask the Members if you have any questions if you could
address it in writing to the Chair and the Chair will expedite, forward it to the
appropriate, uh, administrative people for a response so that we can have it in advance
of the next meeting so that you have time to review the, the responses by the, the
Administration. So that would be my request to you, Members, if you could please
forward your questions to the Chair and we'll again forward it to Administration for in
appropriate response. Yes, Mr. Arakawa.
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COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Um ...we're given this Budget Committee report. It's only
like one paragraph. On the, when you're on the Budget Committee last year this item
was discussed. Was there more, more than I guess this would be about 30 seconds
worth of discussion?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Which one are you looking at, Mr. Arakawa?
2000?

The one dated May 15,

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: May 15,2000. Page 11.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh, you have any comments on-COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yeah, I'm asking-CHAIR HOKAMA: --on this at this time?
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: What I'm asking is was the discussion longer than this
because this is a committee report. It suppose to be verbatim.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, no, the minutes of the meeting is verbatim. The committee report is, is,
is-COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay, but the minutes suppose to be verbatim. Do we have
those?
CHAIR HOKAMA: I believe ... 1 need to check for it, but I believe we do have the minutes of
that meeting, but I need to reconfirm that for you, Mr. Arakawa. I cannot tell you exactly
that I know for certain that the minutes have been transcribed and approved by the
pervious Chairman.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay, and I don't know how many meetings you had to
discuss this item, but however many meetings or whatever the discussion was if, um, if
it's possible to get those I'd like to get those. I'd also like to get from the department,
and I'll ask Wes because he's here then I'll also forward it through, uh, a written format,
um, a list of all the properties that the County has. Because if we're to construct a
facility like this on our own, um, and we have County property available and we look at
that direction, it would be nice to know what properties we have available. I'd also like
to know because we brought this up in discussion for the Fair Ground Site Committee
and we're looking at doing the facilities over in Waiko Road, I'd like to have in writing the
discussion between A&B and the County as to why that proposal was dropped. 'Cause
in my discussions with A&B Waiko Road was not dropped. A&B hasn't been
approached on that area. And I'd like to know why we're not considering areas like that,
and if they, if they are doing negotiation I'd like to know what the scope of those
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discussions are. And I'll. .. I've got a whole bunch of other questions, but I will forward
those in writing. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Arakawa. The Chair appreciates that. Yes, Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: I just have one question for Mr. Lo and it's in regards to some of
his statements that he made to us just now.
CHAI R HOKAMA: Proceed
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Just one. Um, Wes, you made a comment regarding five to
seven year plan would be aggressive on the Administration's part. Saying that, is their
an intention of getting aggressive with this situation from the Administration's
standpoint? Is there ... --(CHANGE OF TAPE)-- ... intention to do so?
MR. LO: Mr. Chair, Councilmember Kane, uh, yes, um ... 1, we are currently working with the
Maui Redevelopment Agency in looking at providing additional space in Wailuku for
government offices at the Wailuku parking lot, um, the, uh, municipal lot. It is obviously
not a simple project. It has a lot of complexities to it and, um ... again, in any acquisition
in building anything it takes a lot of discussion and deliberation with the Council to, to
come up with the final plan, but we, um, have been in discussions with them for some
time and we are trying to put together implementation plans as we speak.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you, Mr. Kane. Wayne. Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No. No questions. I'm sorry.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yeah, along that same line if you have any information as to
any areas in Wailuku that you're considering that we don't, County may own but we're
considering purchasing to create a new County facility and that would I guess include
facilities for all the departments, um, could you let us know what those plans are
because I think it's critical in our decision. I can tell you right now off the top, I am very
much in favor of creating a facility. I do not like leasing. So as far, as far as I'm
concerned with the department I don't believe that it would take five to seven years. I
know we created a whole swimming pool--in what?--about six months to a year? So
we're able to create facilities if we really have the desire to and we put the funding to it.
I don't believe it'll take five to seven years, and I would prefer to see a more long-term
approach than a short-term approach, but I'll read over this, these contracts and these
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others things, but that is my intent is to look at permanent facilities where we're not well,
just leasing and losing the money.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your, uh, your thoughts, Mr. Arakawa. Members, it is the
Chair's intention to defer item 54. Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So ordered. The Chair would just like to share a few comments before we
adjourn this morning. First of all, thank you very much for your attendance and attention
to the serious matters regarding the fiscal condition and request of this County.
The few things I wanna share with you is if there will be disappointment to our
employees about this specific project, then it hasn't come from this Councilor the past
Council. It may have been the unrealistic projections of those that informed those
employees. I would not allow this Committee to be bullied into making a decision that
we are disappointing employees for going through the process thoroughly and doing our
jobs as well as possible.
Second comment that I would like to share with the members this morning is I have just
returned from Seattle from a High Tech Summit sponsored by the National Association
of Counties. And I can tell you that a lot of your questions today was brought up at that
Summit in Seattle, uh, __ at the home of Microsoft, and just to let you know the State
of Washington has elevated E-government to a department level where they have a
State director in charge of E-government and how they've utilized the internet and
high-technology to expand the service and information to all of its residents in the State
of Washington and I find it, you now, very exciting that there may be areas for this
County to look at that we may wanna pursue. So I commend your questions in that
area, and again as Mr. Nishiki brought it up last term, one of the key issues though as
we move forward to E-government is the issue of public information versus privacy. It is
a national issue. It has been discussed at the Summit and of course it will be discussed
again in March at the NACo Legislative Conference that will be held shortly. So I do
have some information that I've, uh, very happy to share as well as my memorandum to
the Chair stating, uh, uh, the activities that I participated on behalf of our County. So
that is open for a review and the memo is directed to the Chair. So I just share that with
you, Members.
Any an ... , an ... , other announcements? If not, thank you very much. This meeting is
adjourned. '" (gavel) . ..

ACTION:

DEFER pending further discussion.
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